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Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

Years Ended March 31 2000 1999 2000

For the Year Ended

Total Income ¥ 189,691 ¥   241,461 $ 1,787,008

Total Expenses 170,587 229,370 1,607,037

Income before Income Taxes 19,103 12,090 179,962

Net Income 11,042 5,351 104,022

At the Year End

Total Assets ¥6,730,441 ¥6,688,828 $63,405,002

Deposits 5,918,971 5,858,946 55,760,442

Loans and Bills Discounted 4,445,943 4,756,216 41,883,589

Securities 1,397,083 1,112,353 13,161,403

Shareholders’ Equity 376,965 374,456 3,551,248
Notes: 1. Japanese yen amounts are rounded down to the nearest million yen.

2. U.S. dollar amounts represent translation of Japanese yen at the exchange rate of ¥106.15 to US$1.00 
on March 31, 2000.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

The Joyo Bank’s symbol succinctly suggests “lasting prosperity.” 
The logo and its meaning derive from the two Chinese characters for “Joyo” which

mean “always” and “sunny.” The mark appropriately represents the Bank 
as a trustworthy financial institution serving the regional community.

Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

Years Ended March 31 2000 1999 2000

For the Year Ended

Total Income ¥ 208,422 ¥ 262,710 $ 1,963,466

Total Expenses 191,097 253,120 1,800,254

Income before Income Taxes and Minority Interests 17,324 9,590 163,203

Net Income 10,930 3,724 102,967

At the Year End

Total Assets ¥6,769,081 ¥6,738,197 $63,769,015

Deposits 5,910,867 5,845,111 55,684,097

Loans and Bills Discounted 4,437,071 4,746,698 41,800,009

Securities 1,397,394 1,141,326 13,164,333

Shareholders’ Equity 376,905 375,214 3,550,682

Capital Adequacy Ratio 11.38% 10.84%
Notes: 1. Japanese yen amounts are rounded down to the nearest million yen.

2. U.S. dollar amounts represent translation of Japanese yen at the exchange rate of ¥106.15 to US$1.00 
on March 31, 2000.

Non-Consolidated
THE JOYO BANK, LTD.

Consolidated
THE JOYO BANK, LTD. AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES



MESSAGE FROM THE MANAGEMENT

We would first of all like to thank all the shareholders, customers, and business part-
ners of Joyo Bank for their unfailing support.

This disclosure report - Annual Report 2000 - has been drawn up to facilitate a
deeper understanding of the Bank on the part of our stakeholders. We have made
efforts to present information on the Bank’s business performance, the progress being
made in addressing management issues, and a description of our marketing activities,
in as clear a manner as possible, and we hope that the report will prove of real use to
readers.

At Joyo Bank, we intend to pursue full disclosure, and by the rigorous application of
the principles of “the customer comes first” and “putting policy into practice,” we aim
to firmly cement our position as the financial institution of first choice, enjoying the full
trust of our customers, our shareholders, and regional society.

We ask for your continued understanding and support in the future. 

Toranosuke Nishino Isao Shibuya
Chairman President
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BUSINESS HIGHLIGHTS

Operating Environment 
During the term ended March 31, 2000, the Bank strove

to strengthen its earning capability, placing emphasis on

expansion of loans to small and medium-sized compa-

nies and individuals, as well as revenues on fees and

commissions. As a result, despite the severe business

conditions, the Bank posted ordinary income of ¥18,942

million and net income of ¥11,042 million, surpassing

the initial targets of ¥15,000 million and ¥10,000 mil-

lion, respectively. 

Net interest income

Net interest income declined ¥6,572 million from the

previous term, which was mainly attributable to declin-

ing yields on securities investment and a decrease in the

loan balance. Yields on securities fell due to redemption

of bonds with relatively higher yield and the purchasing

of short and medium-term bonds to hedge against the

risk of higher interest rates. The loan balance temporar-

ily contracted due to the Bank’s policy of shifting the

weighting of its loan portfolio from borrowers in Tokyo

to customers in its home region.     

The decline in net interest income included a decline

of ¥1,154 million caused by the change of accounting

method, under which accrued interest on loans to

Potentially Bankrupt Borrowers, and Substantially and

Legally Bankrupt Borrowers, was eliminated from the

assets.  

General reserves for possible loan losses

During the term, the Bank made a reversal of ¥6,882

million in general reserves for possible loan losses due

to a decline in loans to Borrowers Requiring Caution,

which resulted from the Bank’s efforts to improve bor-

rowers’ financial positions, as well as a fall in the

reserve ratio based on historical default ratios.   

Profits on other operating activities

The Bank realized gains on sale of government bonds of

more than ¥20 billion during the previous term. On the

other hand, during the term ended March 2000, the

Bank refrained from sale of government bonds, placing

top priority on reconstruction of its government bond

portfolio. 

Operating expenses

Operating expenses decreased ¥1,358 million during the

term to ¥76,754 million due to various efforts to raise

efficiency including a reduction in the number of

employees through the centralization of business opera-

tions, reductions in employees’ bonuses, and cutbacks

in various expenses. Compared with the amounts for

fiscal 1995, these amounts were smaller by a substantial

¥11,940 million.

Disposal of non-performing assets

During the term, disposals of non-performing assets

amounted to ¥45,679 million due to the deterioration of

borrowers’ business performances as a result of the

prolonged sluggishness of the economy and increased

provision of reserves for possible loan losses due to the

decline in real estate collateral values. However, com-

pared with the previous term, the total of write-offs and

provisions to reserves decreased substantially, by

¥16,802 million. This figure has registered a record high

in fiscal 1997, since when it has been gradually declin-

ing. In view of this, the Bank judges that loan losses

and provisions for possible losses have peaked out.

Deposits, Loans and Securities

Deposits

Non-consolidated deposits rose ¥52.9 billion, or 0.9%,

during the term to a balance of ¥5,904.6 billion as of

March 31, 2000. Yen-denominated deposits increased

¥128.9 billion. While deposits from individuals

increased ¥141.1 billion, those from corporations

decreased in line with the Bank’s policy of restraining

large time deposits. Deposits from customers in Ibaraki

Prefecture rose ¥161.1 billion thanks to our marketing

efforts in our home region.
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Loans and bills discounted

The balance of loans outstanding fell ¥310.2 billion, or

6.5%, during the term to ¥4,445.9 billion at term-end.

The balance declined in line with a shift in the loan

portfolio with increased emphasis on local and small

and medium-sized corporations and individuals in our

home region, as well as partial direct write-offs and bulk

sale of non-performing assets. Partial direct write-offs

refer to an accounting treatment in which the irrecover-

able loan amount is eliminated from the balance sheet

by offsetting it with reserves. The balance of loans to

small and medium-sized corporations fell slightly, by

1.2%.

By area, loans to borrowers, mostly large corpora-

tions, located in the major metropolitan areas of Tokyo

and Osaka declined ¥119.4 billion, or 11.1%, due to

internal restraints imposed on low yield or high-risk

loans. For markets in our home region, centered on

Ibaraki Prefecture, loans declined 5.0%. This smaller

decline was attributable to an increase in loans to indi-

viduals centered on mortgage loans, although demand

for funds from corporations remained sluggish.

Excluding such extraordinary factors as partial direct

write-offs, the loan balance of the home region declined

2.4% during the term.

The Bank will make further efforts to strengthen its

lending activities by expanding loans to retail customers

and small and medium-sized corporations in its home

region.

Securities

At the term-end, net unrealized gains on listed securities

came to ¥131,910 million, with unrealized gains of

¥146,184 million and unrealized losses of ¥14,273 

million. 

Capital Ratio
The Bank’s consolidated capital ratio amounted to

11.38% at the term-end, exceeding the prescribed mini-

mum 8% capital requirement according to unified inter-

national standards by a substantial margin. Tier I capital

remained at the high level of 8.97%.

Consolidated Accounts
On a consolidated basis, ordinary income decreased

20.9% to ¥207,433 million, while ordinary expenses

decreased 24.8% to ¥190,279 million. As a result, ordi-

nary profit amounted to ¥17,153 million, and net

income came to ¥10,930 million. Consolidated net

income was smaller than that on a non-consolidated

basis by ¥112 million, which was mainly attributable to

net losses registered by three subsidiaries - The Joyo

Lease Co., Ltd., The Joyo Credit Guarantee Co., Ltd. and

The Joyo Credit Co., Ltd.

Consolidated cash flows

Net cash provided by operating activities was ¥372,192

million due to an increase in deposits from individuals

and a decrease in corporate loans both in Ibaraki

Prefecture and in the Tokyo and Osaka areas. On the

other hand, net cash used in investing activities came to

¥352,338 million due to the purchase of investment

securities. Net cash used in financing activities came to

¥8,622 million due to such activities as stock buy-back

operations. As a result, cash and cash equivalent

increased ¥11,207 million to ¥108,141 million.

10.0
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TACKLING MANAGEMENT TASKS

Creating a new marketing model and working to raise corporate value

The advance of information technology and the ongoing deregulation under Japan’s Big Bang are
producing major changes in the financial scene, including the entry of companies from other sec-
tors into the banking business and the spreading of competition across industrial boundaries.
Against this backdrop, the business situation in general is becoming increasingly difficult.

To cope with these changes in the business environment and build up a solid business founda-
tion that will win the trust and support of our customers, Joyo Bank in April 1999 launched its “7th
medium-term business plan” (April 1, 1999 to March 31, 2002) with the basic objective of enhanc-
ing corporate value. By rigorously applying the policy of “the customer comes first,” we aim to
evolve from a bank into a comprehensive financial services company.
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Creating a New Marketing Model
To further strengthen our marketing base by improving

our ability to meet an increasingly widening range of

customer needs, we are actively promoting banking

services targeted at retail customers and smaller busi-

nesses within our home base of Ibaraki Prefecture. To

that end, we have reorganized our marketing and cleri-

cal work processing system with the needs of our cus-

tomers uppermost in mind, and have initiated a

quadripartite marketing system divided into separate

groups for retail customers (individuals), corporate

customers, the public sector (local governments and

public sector enterprises), and market operations. Each

group is responsible for the planning, detailed drafting,

promotion, and supervision of its own strategies, and

we are attempting to enhance marketing functions by

introducing greater specialization on the part of staff

members in charge. In addition, the responsibilities of

each group for its own earnings are clearly spelled out.

The roles and responsibilities of each branch have

likewise been clarified, and an area-based marketing

system has been introduced. In place of the conven-

tional system, in which each branch offered the full

range of banking services at all customers, including

individuals and corporations, different branches within

the same marketing area now specialize in clearly dif-

ferentiated and defined aspects of banking. In fiscal

1999, we applied this new system to 9 marketing areas

in Ibaraki Prefecture, and in fiscal 2000 we intend to

steadily extend it to around 25 areas within the prefec-

ture. By these means, we aim to strengthen our market-

ing power and improve our marketing efficiency.

Naturally, marketing methods used when branches

conduct both retail and corporate banking differ from

those used when branches specialize in the one or the

other. We are therefore carrying out a rethinking of our

traditional marketing methods by constructing new

marketing models tailored to the differing needs of

marketing to retail customers, corporate customers, and

the public sector. We are redesigning our methods in

the fields of marketing, product proposal, product and

service creation, marketing support, and clerical opera-

tions with respect to each group. 

Regional banks need to effectively manage their

funds, and to address this task, we have set up an

autonomous Market Operations Group to reinforce our

fund management capabilities by developing a wide

range of investment methods and enable us to respond

promptly to changes in the market environment.



Revamping of Management Structure
In June 1999, the Bank revamped its management struc-

ture and instituted a new executive decision system to

facilitate faster decision-making and employ the new

quadripartite marketing group system to maximum

effect.

Specifically, to enable the Board of Directors to

function more effectively, the number of Board mem-

bers was reduced and the criteria for inclusion of mat-

ters on the agenda of Board meetings were revised. In

addition, a “Strategic Council” was established and

authorized to make decisions and execute them on

behalf of the Board of Directors, in particular to discuss

the details of items agreed on by the Board of Directors

and to decide business plans for the Bank’s groups.

Furthermore, to speed up the execution of business

operations, an executive officer system was introduced

and an “Executive Officers Council” inaugurated to

shoulder part of the burden of overseeing the day-to-day

operations of the individual groups.

In July 2000, with the twin aims of achieving a

smaller head office and decentralizing the implementa-

tion of corporate governance, the Bank partially reorga-

nized its head office. To strengthen the operation of the

groups, authority over certain matters was delegated to

them and areas of responsibility were clearly delineated.

We believe that bringing authority closer to the sales

front-line will speed up the decision-making process. 

In line with the change from non-consolidated to

consolidated financial main statements, it has become

increasingly important to exercise “group management”

over the parent bank and the other group companies.

To reinforce management of the group as a whole, we

have set up a Group Management Council. Moreover,

while each individual group company will continue to

work for improved earnings, we will be striving to raise

the overall power of the group through a clear definition

of the role of each company and its position in the

group as a means of facilitating closer liaison between

the parent bank and its subsidiaries as well as more

active exchange of staff.

Realizing Self-Motivated Reform
To adapt to the rapidly changing business environment,

the Bank must be prepared to reinvent itself and pursue

management innovation. In recognition of this, the

management of Joyo Bank aims to constantly realize

innovation and create a new corporate culture. For this

purpose, it is essential that each and every member of

the Bank’s staff understands the Bank’s vision and strat-

egy and consciously accepts the need for innovation.

To lay the groundwork for the materialization of

such innovation, from fiscal 2000 onwards, mindful of

our social role as a financial services company, we are

strictly applying the principles of “the customer comes

first” and “putting policy into practice.” To this end, we

have launched the “J-Innovation Campaign,” which

aims to improve the way our employees approach their

jobs by making them fully aware of the importance of

offering our customers financial services with high

added value. We are confident that, by improving the

consulting capabilities of all our staff and translating

this into substantial form at the point of sale, we will

raise the Bank’s corporate value.

We are also embarking on a revision of our person-

nel system. To raise the skill level of our human

resources and energize the Bank’s organization as a

whole, the introduction of a performance-linked com-

pensation system is absolutely essential. In addition,

with effect from fiscal 2000, we are introducing a stock

option system for eligible staff to more strongly moti-

vate them to contribute to the improvement of the

Bank’s business performance.

To raise our human resources skill level and ensure

effective marketing by each group, we are reinforcing

our staff training system by such means as setting out

skill requirements for each group and implementing

skill development programs.
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Equity Capital
To raise the level of profit return to our shareholders

and achieve more efficient capital utilization, as

reflected in the ROE, the Bank established a reserve for

the retirement of own stock in the amount of ¥5,000

million, and at the end of March 2000, 9,368 thousand

shares were purchased and retired for a total of ¥4,177

million. 

The retirement of own stock is a very valuable tool

in clarifying the Bank’s shareholder-focused manage-

ment stance. From here onward, we intend to purchase

and retire more own stock as and when appropriate in

light of the Bank’s earnings and capital ratio.

In February 2000, we implemented a secondary

offering of 23 million shares for the purpose of broaden-

ing our shareholder base among both individuals and

institutional investors. 

Response to Differences Arising from Changes in
Pension Plan Accounting
The mandatory adoption from the fiscal 200 business

term of the new pension plan accounting standards will

give rise to differences in the unfunded portion of past

service liabilities. With regard to this, we plan to estab-

lish a pension plan trust and intend to amortize remain-

ing costs within 5 years by the straight line method so

as not to prejudice the Bank’s financial position.
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7th Medium-Term Business Plan

Management Philosophy 
 “sound management,” “create value together with customers,” “living together with the region”

Group operation strategy Strengthening of differentiated group-marketing system

Target Management Indicators for FY2002
ROE (based on net income):  approx. 7%

Net operating business profit:  approx. ¥60 billion
Tier I capital:  approx. 9%

Growth strategy Competition strategy
Basic Goals

Raising the Bank’s corporate value in the eyes of customers, 
shareholders, and regional society

Personnel system / compensation system Strengthening risk management

Priority Tasks
• Boosting earning power     • Strengthening financial position

• Reorganizing marketing system     • Reforming corporate culture

Corporate Goal 
To be the region’s strongest financial services company



Reinforcing Marketing Power 

With the goal of strengthening the Bank’s marketing power and earning power, we introduced a
new marketing system in June 1999 in which four new groups were set up to handle different
marketing segments. Our marketing activities are now apportioned out among the Retail Banking
Business Group, the Corporate Banking Business Group, the Public Business Group, and the
Market Business Group. Each group is responsible for the planning, promotion, and supervision of
its own strategies, both facilitating fast response and clearly placing responsibility for earnings on
the groups themselves. Within each group, supervision organizations have been established to
ensure that group management constantly maintains an accurate grasp of the state of earnings.
The Bank’s resources are actively directed into those groups showing high earnings on the basis of
evaluation of profitability and efficiency. 

The new marketing system also clarifies the role of each branch. All branches handle the retail
banking business, while the Corporate Banking Business Group divides the region into marketing
areas and offers financial services in close cooperation with the Public Business Group. We are
also putting efforts into widening our range of marketing channels, including direct banking.

We believe that by using the most appropriate methods in each case to offer customers high-
quality financial products and services that meet their needs, we will succeed in raising the level of
customer satisfaction. 
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Retail Banking
Joyo Bank’s Retail Banking Business Group offers finan-

cial services specially tailored to the needs of individu-

als. Joyo Bank’s goal is to serve as a valuable financial

“partner” to our customers. By the integrated use of all

customers’ communications channels - door-to-door

marketing, branches, and direct banking - we aim to

enhance our ability to respond to customers’ require-

ments while strengthening our cost-competitiveness,

allowing us to offer financial services that fully and

accurately meet customer needs.

Providing Precise Financial Services

By deepening their understanding of the increasingly

sophisticated and diverse range of customer require-

ments to be able to offer the financial products and

services that most precisely meet customer needs and

provide accurate advice on asset management our

marketing staff must offer services that are closely

matched to each customer’s individual circumstances. 

Joyo Bank’s Life Plan Banking utilizes database

marketing to select and offer the most appropriate

financial services to each customer at every stage of

their life. 

In our Personal Banking service, the assignment of

specific staff members to each customer allows the

Bank to precisely grasp the financial needs of each

customer, enabling us to offer integrated financial ser-

vices that cover all the customer’s requirements.

Our Business Support Banking service is targeted at

sole proprietors, and in addition to the normal range of

financial services, includes a wider range of business

support services such as management and marketing

information. 



Diversifying Customer Access Channels

The key point for customers when deciding which bank

to deal with is “which one is the most pleasant to deal

with”? Up to now, in addition to our branches, we have

put efforts into bolstering direct channels, including

financial advisory services conducted directly from our

head office. Now, we are enhancing our ability to offer

financial products and services via the channel most

suited to each customer by clarifying each customer’s

needs and financial situation.

In May 2000, we opened the Hitachi-Naka Investment

Trust Plaza, a specialist outlet for the sale of investment

trusts. Then, in July, we began offering the “Access J”

directs banking service allowing customers to conduct

financial transactions over fixed-line telephones, via the

Internet using PCs, and via i-mode enabled cellular

phones. This is the first such service offered in Ibaraki

Prefecture. 

From the spring of 2001, we plan to begin providing

a deposit and withdrawal service through ATMs at

convenience stores.

Strengthening Competitiveness by Developing

Superior Products

The ability of a bank to offer financial products that

meet customer needs is the key to increasing its compet-

itiveness, and in this light, we are devoting greater

effort to enhancing our capabilities in the field of prod-

uct planning to keep abreast of changing customer

requirements.

In February 2000, we effected a major revision of the

terms and conditions of our mortgage loan products. For

customers with refinancing needs, we eased the condi-

tions on our Refinancing Plan mortgage loans, allowing

customers to borrow up to ¥10 million without addi-

tional collateral. Moreover, to respond to the demand

for fixed-amount, long-term loans amid the very low

zero interest climate, we have introduced a lineup of

mortgage loan products that allows the customer to

select the loan product whose interest conditions most

closely suit his or her needs. 

In the field of non-mortgage long-term loans, too, we

have launched products in response to growing demand.

Turning to fund investment services, in addition to

deposit products with enhanced customer convenience

features, we also intend bolstering our lineup of invest-

ment products such as investment trusts and foreign

currency deposits. To allow us to design investment

trust products that suit a wide range of customer invest-

ment goals, we have widened our product lineup exten-

sively. In foreign currency deposits, we now offer more

attractive products with superior interest rate conditions. 

Nurturing Capable Human Resources

It is impossible to offer customers financial products

and services that meet their needs without truly under-

standing those needs, and without possessing the skills

required to match products and services with the cus-

tomers to whom they are best suited. It is thus essential

for a successful bank to train and retain staff with the

requisite skills. At Joyo Bank, we devote considerable

effort to the training of financial advisors and other

specialists so as to foster staff with both a wide fund of

knowledge and finely honed consulting abilities.

Corporate Financial Services 
To provide all-round support for the development and

growth of corporate customers’ businesses, Joyo Bank

offers the Comprehensive Financial Service, which makes

maximum use of all the Bank’s capabilities. Apart from

such basic matters as providing advice and the financial

products best suited to customers’ needs - based on a

thorough knowledge of each customer’s business and

financial position - this service enables us to respond

promptly and effectively to the increasingly sophisticated

and diverse needs of our customers via a wide variety of

marketing channels. Moreover, in view of the overriding

importance of credit risk management, we are working to

enhance our capabilities in this respect. 

Joyo Bank’s Comprehensive Financial Service - pro-

viding management and growth support for corporate

clients

We offer a comprehensive financial service, incorporat-

ing the Bank’s wide range of products and expertise, to

meet the manifold funding needs of our corporate

clients and provide the financial support required for

startups and ventures into new business fields.

<Marketing Channels for Corporate Clients>

• Area-Based Marketing System

We have divided up our branch network into small

areas, and in areas where many branches are located,

the corporate banking business - formerly conducted by
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each branch individually - has been concentrated in the

hands of the newly established local corporate business

sections. This allows us to offer our corporate clients a

more sophisticated service.

• Direct Marketing from Head Office

Business with corporate clients whose operations range

over a wide geographical area beyond the scope of any

of the Bank’s individual marketing areas, as well as in

fields of operation requiring a high degree of specialist

knowledge, such as capital market operations, are han-

dled swiftly and efficiently by teams of specialists at our

head office. 

• Marshaling Group Strength to Offer Comprehensive

Financial Services

Member companies of the Bank’s group provide cus-

tomer support in such areas as the collection and analy-

sis of management and industry data, leasing, and

computer system development aimed at raising the

efficiency of financing operations and clerical work

processing.

Active marketing to cultivate loans to local small-

scale corporate customers

We believe that the prime strength of our highly com-

petitive Corporate Business Group lies in business with

small and medium-sized enterprises. Moreover, the

Bank is most competitive in its local market, and we are

plan to focus our efforts on expanding transactions with

smaller corporate customers in the local region by offer-

ing comprehensive financial services over our entire

marketing region. 

Furthermore, to ensure the profitability of our loan

business while maintaining a sound financial position, we

have overhauled our credit screening system and revised

our standards for the setting of interest rates on loans.

Providing Financing for the Region

We have begun offering our “Fund 2000” as a way of

providing support to smaller enterprises in our home

region. To assist the development of smaller businesses,

including sole proprietors, in the region, and thereby

revitalize the regional economy, we have set aside a

total of ¥200 billion for loans to such customers. The

“Fund 2000” service currently includes such financial

products as loans for corporate clients with interest rate

payment options, a new type of quick business loan,

and the “Joyo Small Loan.” Within the period of the

Bank’s current medium-term management plan, we

expect to extend loans worth a total of ¥200 billion. 

Revamping of Loan Status Monitoring System

The Loan Status Monitoring Division at the Bank’s head

office specializes in monitoring the repayment status of

large-lot loans, and provides borrowers showing poor

business performance with extra management support.

By delegating authority to the staff of local corporate

business sections and extending the scope of application

of the Bank’s automated credit screening system, we are

able to speed up the screening process and more ade-

quately manage credit risk while at the same time low-

ering monitoring costs.

Revision of standards for setting interest rates on loans

From April 2000, we have been applying revised stan-

dards for the setting of interest rates on loans which

take into account more precisely the estimated credit

risk and costs involved.

Promoting Business with the Public Sector
— Contributing to the development of the region —
As Joyo Bank is a regional bank and has thus sunk deep

roots into the local community, we aim not only to

serve the needs of local customers and society in our

home region, but also to help raise the region’s living

standards by improving its infrastructure. By providing

opportunities for local enterprises to improve their

earnings through the funding of public contracts, we

contribute to the fostering of fledgling industries and to

the development of the region as a whole by giving

local companies and public sector enterprises the

chance to share in our know-how. 

Joyo Bank’s Market Business Group Enhances its
Fund Management Capabilities
Together with other Bank groups involved in domestic

marketing, the Market Business Group is one of Joyo

Bank’s profit centers, and the maintenance and, if possi-

ble, expansion, of the group’s earnings is an issue of top

management priority. In the field of ALM (asset-liability

management), too, we are striving to improve coopera-

tion among different sections of the Bank to maintain a

stable income level. To improve the efficiency of our

fund management, we have introduced new investment

methods and are enhancing the ability of our staff in
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marketing operations. In this way, we aim to our asset

portfolio and thereby reinforce our earning power.

Moreover, to attain greater competitiveness in retail

banking, the Market Business Group offers marketable

products as well as providing market information. The

Market Business Group supports the Retail Banking

Business Group in the settlement and administration of

investment trusts, bonds, stocks, and other types of

securities, as well as foreign exchange transactions.

IT Strategy
The Bank’s policy is to approach its information tech-

nology strategy in close linkage with its overall manage-

ment strategy. To this end, we have set up project

teams to examine three focal tasks - radically reforming

the Bank’s cost structure, strengthening the Bank’s

marketing power and brand power, and developing the

online banking business.

Radical reform of branch cost structure

During the reorganization of the Bank’s branch system

(scheduled for FY2001-FY2002), we plan to introduce

image processing technology that, by making possible

the authentication of a customer’s seal (used in Japan

as personal identification in the same way as signatures

in the West), will allow us to centralize branch back

office operations. This will enable us to streamlining

back office work and thus reduce clerical staff, produc-

ing a leaner branch system with a more efficient cost

structure. At the same time, we aim to transform our

branches into “consulting centers” that focus on market-

ing and consulting services.

Strengthening marketing power and brand power

We plan to transform the focus of our marketing system

from the sale of financial products to the provision of a

comprehensive service that answers customers’ needs.

For this purpose, we must be able to analyze each

customer’s requirements and propose products and

services that precisely match these needs in a timely

manner. In turn, to be make this possible, we must

demonstrate a comprehensive range of capabilities by

raising the level of sophistication of our marketing,

improving staff sales skills, enhancing direct marketing

channels, and ensuring close liaison between different

channels.

Online banking

On the field of online banking, it is vital to move fast

and to offer products or services that are distinct from

those of our rivals. Joyo Bank is currently studying

various proposals for an online banking service with a

view to determining the most profitable type of cus-

tomer channel.

Enforcing a Stricter Profit Management System at
the Group Level
To raise the efficiency of the management of each of the

Bank’s four groups, it is essential for us to draw up a

group strategy and establish a new marketing system,

while simultaneously monitoring the profitability of

each group and achieving the optimal allocation of

capital and management resources.

The return on investment cannot be divorced from

the risk involved. Risks, such as credit risk and interest

risk, vary by nature and the timing of their occurrence,

and in order to evaluate and manage, at the same level,

the performance of our operational groups - all of which

are subject to risk - it is essential to obtain an accurate

picture of expected earnings after allowance for credit

risk (i.e., after deduction of average projected losses

from credit risk), and to quantify systemic risk (the

materialization of risk exceeding the average). By doing

so, we are able to compare the risk-adjusted profitability

of each operational group using the same criteria.

The Bank’s earnings management policy formerly

focused on maximizing net business profit, but we are

now carrying out earnings management on the basis of

a clearly defined method of weighing risk and against

return.

11



Rationalization Efforts

The establishment of an effective marketing system is indispensable to successful retail banking
operations. The Bank has carried out the following measures to achieve a cost-efficient operating
structure. By the end of fiscal 1999, operating costs were reduced by ¥11.9 billion from their peak
level in fiscal 1995. This figure represents the difference between the maximum and minimum level
of operating costs incurred in recent years. 
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Overhaul of the Bank’s Branch Network
We are working hard to set up new marketing channels,

such as direct banking and ATMs at convenience stores.

We are closing and merging the operations of existing

staffed branches, while converting some to unstaffed

outlets. 

By the end of fiscal 2002, 25 branches will have

been streamlined. In fiscal 1999, we closed one branch

and transferred the operations of a branch to an upper-

level floor. As a result, as of the term-end, the Bank

operated 185 branches. 

We are scheduled to close the London Branch during

the term ending March 31, 2001. Consequently, our

overseas bases will comprise the New York Branch and

the Shanghai Representative Office. 

Rationalization of Operations
We are carrying out a complete overhaul of our clerical

processing system, with a view to centrally executing all

back office work. Trial runs commenced in fiscal 1999,

leading to full-scale implementation in fiscal 2000.

Furthermore, we are setting up a new cash delivery

system and expanding the scope of outsourced clerical

work. 

We expect to reduce the number of our employees

by 470 by March 2003. In fiscal 1999, we reduced our

staff by 115. 

Reducing Personnel Expenses 
In fiscal 1999, the Bank continued to hold down bonus

payments to employees. As a result, personnel expenses

fell ¥1.2 billion from the previous term. The Bank will

bring its bonus payment system in line with its new

marketing structure, while shifting over to a perfor-

mance-linked compensation system.

As a result of improved operating efficiency, we

reduced operating expenses by ¥1.3 billion to a total of

¥76.7 billion in fiscal 1999. This marks a sharp reduc-

tion of ¥11.9 billion since fiscal 1995, when operating

expenses were at their highest level in recent years. We

will continue to strive for higher efficiency according to

plan, and to reduce operating expenses associated with

existing operations. However, operating expenses are

expected to remain unchanged in the near future, as we

are scheduled to step up investment in information

technology. 



Strengthening Compliance System
The Bank places a high priority on strengthening its

compliance system to ensure sound banking operations,

fulfill its social responsibility and public mission, and

maintain the trust of customers, shareholders and other

stakeholders. 

• To raise employees’ professional ethical awareness,

the Bank compiled a compliance manual as a practical

guideline.

• The Bank drew up a compliance action program,

based on which efforts are being made to strengthen

individual compliance activities. 

• The Bank has assigned a specialist compliance officer

to every business group: these officers are responsible

for legal affairs in their groups.

• The Bank set up a Compliance Auditing Committee,

consisting of outside professionals including a lawyer

and a CPA. The committee fairly evaluates and audits

the Bank’s compliance activities. Internal compliance

activities should be supplemented by outside audits to

inject the required professional knowledge and objec-

tivity. The Bank is striving to further strengthen and

improve its compliance activities.

The Bank’s Definition of Compliance ActivitiesThe Bank’s Definition of Compliance Activities

• Faithfully following not only laws and 

ordinances, but also internal rules and 

regulations, as well as social norms.
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Compliance System

Internal audit function

[Audit organizations]
Corporate Auditors Meeting 

(Corporate Auditors)

[Audit section]
Audit Office, 

Corporate Audit Division

[Decision-making and supervisory body]
Board of Directors

[Relevant committee]
Compliance Committee

[Supervision of group companies]
   Affiliated Company 
Management Office, 

Corporate Administration Division

Group Companies

Strategic Council
Director in Charge

[Supervision]
Legal Office, Corporate Audit Division

[Compliance audit]
Compliance officers

Evaluation and audits of compliance activities

External compliance 
audit function [External compliance audit]

Compliance Auditing Committee

Head Office Divisions and Branches
[Compliance manager]  General Managers
[Officer in charge]   Compliance Officers 

Head Office 
Division in Charge



Risk Management

Organizational Frameworks for Risk Management
• In addition to improving its compliance system, the

Bank also strives to upgrade its internal risk manage-

ment system. The Bank is building a structure in which

the responsibilities of each section are clarified and

checks and balances among organizational units func-

tion properly. In October 1998, the Bank established a

comprehensive risk management section, called the

Management Administration Department, and in July

2000 this was reorganized into the Corporate Audit

Division to strengthen its internal auditing function.

• For loan lending activities, as the Bank has clearly

separated credit-screening sections from business pro-

motion sections to implement rigorous credit screening,

loan assets are placed under adequate management

during the whole lending period. While the Corporate

Audit Division verifies the soundness of loan assets

based on self-assessment of assets, the Corporate

Planning Division quantifies credit risks and makes

efforts to improve the Bank’s corporate ratings system,

which contributes to raising the sophistication of credit

risk management. 

• For market transactions, the Bank has clearly sepa-

rated front offices and back offices, and established

middle offices, to assure a proper system of checks and

balances for market operations.   

Risk Management Process
With regard to risk management, it is essential to timely

carry out the following processes without omission.

Risk recognition and identification process

A process to recognize and identify risks

Measurement of Risk

A process for measuring the size and the degree of risk

for specific transactions as well as the asset portfolio as

a whole

Risk control

A process to establish authority and limitations, and

investigate and carry out other risk control methods

Continuous monitoring of risk

Recognition and report to management of the degree of

risks and risk management systems by management

sections independent of business promotion sections

Comprehensive Risk Management
Risks are divided into two categories - quantifiable risks

and unquantifiable risks. 

Quantifiable risks 

Quantifiable risks refer to measurable risks into which

credit and market risks fall. These risks require risk

management as a counterpart of expected returns.

Unquantifiable risks

Such risks as legal, clerical and EDP risks are not mea-

surable. Risk-prevention and minimization measures are

required for these risks.

• Our comprehensive risk management system is cur-

rently under construction. Under its methodology, credit

and market risks will be statistically estimated utilizing

a method of Value at Risk. In fiscal 2000, the Bank will

begin operation as soon as the system’s infrastructure

and operating regulations are made available.

Credit Risk Management
Credit risks refer to one of the most important risks the

Banks must face, by which principal and interest may

become uncollectable due to deterioration in the finan-

cial conditions of borrowers.

The Bank is making its utmost efforts to vigorously

manage credit risks in order to prevent the emergence of

new problem loans and to improve the quality of its

loan portfolio.

Upgrading credit-screening system

The Bank has established a system of checks and bal-

ances for credit screening, clearly separating credit

screening sections and business promotion sections. To

adequately meet the fund requirements of corporate

customers, the Bank in fiscal 1999 introduced a market-

ing system called  “Area Marketing” where extended

corporate banking services are provided by the Area

Corporate Business Division for corporate customers

concentrated in the same areas. While the Bank is

steadily expanding areas to which the “Area Marketing”

14
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Quantification of Credit Risk
Estimate maximum potential loss based
on historical default ratio

Quantification of Market Risk
Estimate maximum potential loss based
on historical fluctuation of the markets

Potential loss 
+ expected fluctuation in loss
= Maximum Potential Loss

VaR : Expected Maximum Loss based
on Market Price

EaR : Expected Maximum Loss 
( P/L during a certain period of time)

Can be Added Up (Same
Principle)
= Integrated risk man-

agement against Credit
Risk and Market Risk

VaR 
Statistically inferred amount of Deterioration of the Present Value (maximum potential
loss) of the assets and liabilities currently held , based on interest rate scenarios drawn
up by using statistical simulation method.

EaR
Statistically inferred amount of Minimum Profit or Maximum Loss during a certain
period of time in the future which is derived from the expected asset and liability
structure in the future, based on interest rate scenarios drawn up by using statistical
simulation method

Quantification using
statistical methods
Calculate the maximum
potential loss in the
future based on 
historical data

The Bank’s Internal Risk Management System

Computer system 
Auditing system

Board of Directors Corporate Auditors 
Meeting External Auditor

Audit Office, 
Corporate Audit Division

Markets Planning Office, 
Markets and Business 
Administration Division

M
onitoring

Inspection system
Guidance system

Corporate Audit Division 
(in charge of credit risk integration)

Constructing risk management responsibility 
system and “checks-and-balances” system

Clarification of standard procedures; 
promotion of automated processing

Information security management
Stable system environment
Emergency measures

Operations auditing and inspection

Legal Office, Corporate Audit Division

Asset self-assessment system

Customer credit rating system

Credit line management

Credit risk premium system

Banking Division
ALM spread management

Trading Division
Daily reporting system
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Management System
• Risk quantification 
  using statistical methods
• Risk-adjusted 
  pricing of loans

Legal risk

Credit risk
   Default risk
   Counterparty risk
   (derivative transactions)
   Country risk

Market risk
   Interest risk
   Price risk
   Liquidity risk

Operational risk

System risk

Strategic Council

Compliance 
Committee

ALM Committee

Security Committee



system is applied, unified credit screening standards are

applied to ensure strict credit screening based on our

Credit Policy.

The Bank strives to prevent deterioration of its loan

portfolio by means of rigorous self-assessment of assets

and by means of frequent reviews of corporate ratings.

The self-assessment of loans is carried out at first by

each branch (initial assessment), and then verified by

the head office division in charge of credit screening

(secondary assessment). Finally, results are audited by

the Corporate Audit Department. The Bank provides

adequate reserves for possible loan losses and writes

down relevant problem loans based on the assessment.

In order to maintain a sound asset portfolio, the Bank

assigns a dedicated team to borrowers with deteriorated

financial conditions and borrowers whose loans are

falling into the category of bad debt.

In addition, the Bank has introduced a credit scoring

system for small-amount loans, unifying credit screen-

ing standards and improving efficiency.

During the term ending March 2001, the Bank

intends to upgrade efficiency in screenings and opera-

tions of loans by such measures as sharing and upgrad-

ing credit-related information through a PC network.

Furthermore, we place great emphasis on nurturing

and training staff. The Bank strives to improve its

employees’ credit screening and management skills

through on-the-job training at the Credit Examination

Division and on-site audits.  

Quantification of credit risk amounts

The Bank calculates the quantity of individual credit

risk based on borrowers’ corporate ratings, which are

assigned based on the quantitative and qualitative

analysis of the financial conditions of each borrower, as

well as the degree of coverage by collateral or guaran-

tees. Credit risk amounts are recognized in terms of

average credit risk amounts, which is based on the

average default ratios in the past, and excessive credit

risk amounts caused by external factors such as sub-

stantial economic fluctuation.

The quantification of credit risk enables the Bank to

recognize the magnitude of the credit risk involved, and

therefore, enable the Bank to recognize the risk-return

ratio as well as the degree of concentration of credit

risk. The Bank is using the quantitative data of credit

risk to improve the management of its loan portfolio by

such measures as applying the data to secure a suffi-

cient risk-return ratio. The Bank strives to improve the

accuracy of the quantification and continues to accumu-

late data for further improvement in the asset allocation,

which adequately reflects the size of the risk.

Loan asset portfolio

The Bank carries out credit risk management regarding

the entire loan assets as the loan asset portfolio. Based

on the quantitative data, the Bank regularly monitors its

overall credit risk exposure to avoid overconcentration

of the credit risk on specific industries or corporations.

We will strive to improve our profitability and risk-

taking capabilities by reducing the amount of credit risk

through appropriate diversification of credit risk.

In addition, we are making further efforts to directly

control the quantity of credit risks by such measures as

liquidation of loan assets.

Market Risk Management
Market risk refers to fluctuations in revenue caused by

changes in interest rates, foreign exchange rates, and

supply-demand conditions of funds, which always affect

such assets and liabilities as loans, securities, and

deposits.  

System of Self-assessment of Assets

Management
Reporting

Corporate Audit Division 
(Assessment Audit)

Credit Examination Division 
Credit Supervision Division 

(Secondary assessment)

Branches/Area Corporate 
Business Division
(Initial assessment)

 <Loans> <Other assets>

Sections in charge of 
other assets

(Initial assessment)
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Asset and liability management (ALM) system 

The Bank utilizes the latest ALM method to control

market risk exposure facing the Bank. The Bank is

carrying out various analyses with regard to the risks

involved in assets and liabilities, such as simulation of

interest rate fluctuations, Value at Risk (VaR), and

Earning at Risk (EaR) to make adequate decisions for

the efficient allocation of assets and effective risk man-

agement.

Derivative Transactions

The Bank engages in derivative transactions to meet

customers’ diversified needs and to hedge the Bank’s

own risk.

In order to understand the risk, the Bank is carrying

out such measures as daily revaluation, sensitivity

analysis, and calculation of Value at Risk. At the same

time, the Bank is setting various risk management rules

such as credit limits, position limits, and stop-loss rules.

Computer Security Measures

The Growing Need for Computer Security

The use of information technology has been increasing

dramatically in recent years. In particular, in the finan-

cial services industry, Internet banking and online trad-

ing of stocks utilizing PCs and mobile phones has

become widespread. Furthermore, it will be possible to

provide a highly differentiated range of products and

services that meet all conceivable customer require-

ments in the near future.

Although these services contribute significantly to

customer convenience, strict computer security is essen-

tial if customers are to feel comfortable availing them-

selves of these new services. Specific threats to

computer systems include the theft, leakage, unautho-

rized alteration, and destruction of private information,

as well as fraud (conducting transactions under an

assumed identity). Other threats include the destruction

and unauthorized alteration of websites, including the

large-volume transmission of data causing interruption

of services, and the spreading of computer viruses.

Strengthening of Computer Security

The Bank is taking the following measures to reinforce

its computer security system.

Security Policy

We have drawn up a Security Policy that lays down

basic guidelines regarding computer security. These

guidelines clearly identify priority information requiring

protection, prescribe standards of conduct that promote

tight security, and provide an implementation plan,

while identifying staff roles and responsibilities.

Furthermore, we are also drafting detailed, official

regulations - comprising roughly 270 items - that

address equipment, operating procedures, and technical

standards related to information technology and security

standards.  

Security Administration System

The Bank maintains a Comprehensive Security

Management Department that is headed by the

Executive Director in Charge of Security and aided by

the Security Deliberation Committee. Additionally, data

asset administrators and data security officers have been

appointed for all work places, while data handling is

regulated by explicit guidelines. This security system

provides protection against external threats and pre-

vents unauthorized actions by employees. Moreover,

data asset protection is further assured by assigning

system administrators, data administrators, and network

administrators to each system. 

Internet Banking

The Bank commenced its Internet banking service in

July 2000 under the name of Joyo Direct Banking

“Access J.”

This service employs the latest encryption technology

for transmitting information between our customers and

the Bank, providing assurance against data theft.

Additionally, the Internet Banking System is protected

against unauthorized access, and its stable operation

safeguarded by a back-up system. Technical staff, who

check access logs on a continuing basis as a precaution-

ary measure against unauthorized access, monitor

server operations 24 hours a day, thus enabling prompt

responses in emergencies and ensuring the reliability

and safety of Internet banking for our customers. 
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Countermeasures Against 
Non-Performing Loans

Write-offs and provisions to reserves for possible
loan losses based on self-assessment of assets
Financial institutions have been obligated to carry out

self-assessment of assets since April 1998 when the

Prompt Corrective Action measures were introduced.

Self-assessment refers to the classification of owned

assets by the financial institution itself. The financial

institution classifies borrowers into 5 borrower cate-

gories — Normal Borrowers, Borrowers Requiring

Caution, Borrowers Threatened with Bankruptcy,

Potentially Bankrupt Borrowers, Substantially Bankrupt

Borrowers — and classifies loan assets into 4 categories

in accordance with the degree of risk on collectibility or

damage to asset value. Financial institutions are required

to provide reserves for possible loan losses and write off

bad debt based on their self-assessment of assets.

At the end of every half-term, the Bank carries out

self-assessment based on its own self-assessment stan-

dards and manuals in accordance with the “Financial

Institutions Inspection Manual” issued by the FSA

(Financial Services Agency) and the Japan Institute of

Certified Public Accountants’ “Practical Guidelines.”

Based on these self-assessment results, and in line with

reserve provision standards, the Bank carries out write-

offs and provides reserves to a sufficient degree and in a

proper manner.   

Bad Debt Disposal during the Term
During the term, the Bank made disposals of ¥45.6

billion in bad debts based on self-assessment. The

breakdown was as follows.
Millions of Yen

March March 
2000 1999 Change

Write Off of Claims ¥10,907 ¥ 96 ¥ 10,810
Net Provision for Specific Reserves 28,160 55,657 (27,496)
Provision of Specific Foreign Borrowers (393) 369 (762)
Losses on Sales of Loans to the 
Cooperative Credit Purchasing Co., Ltd. 144 78 65

Losses on Bulk Sale of Loans 1,355 1,409 (53)
Provision for Possible Losses on 
Sales of Loans 2,658 1,105 1,552

Provision for Other Contingent Losses 2,675 1,182 1,492
Other 170 2,583 (2,412)

Total ¥45,679 ¥62,482 ¥(16,802)

The Bank sold ¥25.9 billion in bad debts, of which ¥24.7

billion were sold by bulk sale. For the current five years

the Bank registered its largest disposal amount of ¥107.5

billion in the term ended March 1998, and the amount

has been declining since then. 

Provision of Reserves for Possible Loan Losses    
We provided reserves for possible loan losses equivalent

to 100% of possible loan loss amounts after deduction

of secured amounts covered by collateral and guaran-

tees for Legally Bankrupt Borrowers and Substantially

Bankrupt Borrowers. We also provided reserves equiva-

lent to 74.38% of possible loan loss amounts after

deduction of secured amounts covered by collateral and

guarantees for Potentially Bankrupt Borrowers, on the

basis of historical default ratios in the past. As a result,

the balance of specified reserves for possible loan losses

amounted to ¥68.6 billion at the term-end, making the

reserve ratio of 75.46%. Beginning with the term under

review, the Bank implemented Partial Direct Write-Off

accounting methods in which the irrecoverable loan

amount classified as Category IV (Legally Bankrupt

Borrowers ¥20.7 billion and Substantially Bankrupt

Borrowers ¥49.9 billion) under self-assessment is elimi-

nated from the balance sheet. In addition, the Bank

provided a ¥3.4 billion as the Reserve for Other

Contingent Losses based on the estimated future losses

on real estate mortgages associated with loans sold

upon liquidation of assets. 

The Bank provided a general reserve for possible

loan losses in line with the FSA’s Financial Institutions

Inspection Manual. The Bank divided borrowers requir-

ing caution into three sub-categories including

Substandard Borrowers, and provided reserves for
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possible loan losses based on historical default ratios for

each sub-category.

We will strengthen credit risk management and

adequately write off claims to maintain the soundness

of our assets.

Reserves Based on Self-Assessment
Billions of Yen

Potentially Substantially Legally 
Bankrupt Bankrupt Bankrupt 
Borrowers Borrowers Borrowers Total

Claims after Partial 
Write Off (i) 181.4 51.3 19.8 252.6

(Partial Write Off) — (49.9) (20.7) (70.7)
Claims Secured by 
Collateral (ii) 94.3 48.3 18.9 161.6

Claims with uncertain 
Collectibility (A)=(i)-(ii) 87.0 3.0 0.8 90.9

Specific Reserve (B) 64.7 3.0 0.8 68.6
Reserve Ratio (B)/(A) 74.38% 100.00% 100.00% 75.46%

Reserves for Possible Loan Losses
Billions of Yen

March March 
2000 1999 Change

General Loan Loss Reserves 27.1 33.9 (6.8)
Specific reserves 68.6 125.9 (57.2)
Reserves for Specific Foreign Borrowers 0.0 0.3 (0.3)
Reserves for Possible Loan Losses 95.7 160.2 (64.5)
Reserves for Assistance to Specific Borrowers — — —
Reserves for Possible Losses on Sales of Loans 5.8 3.2 2.5
Reserves for Other Contingent Losses 3.4 1.1 2.3

Disclosure on Asset Portfolio
The Bank has placed top-priority on disposal of non-

performing assets to secure soundness of assets, and

actively disclosed its financial position.

Disclosure of Risk-Monitored Assets under the

Banking Law  

Beginning with the term under review, the Bank

adopted a new asset disclosure standard based on the

results of self-assessment of assets. The Bank previously

disclosed the loan assets whose accrued interests were

not posted in balance sheet items as a part of “Loans in

Bankruptcy and Dishonored Bills” or “Delinquent

Loans” in accordance with regulations stipulated in the

Corporate Tax Law. Effective with the term ended

March 2000, the Bank disclosed loans to “Legally

Bankrupt Borrowers” under the newly defined “Loans

in Bankruptcy and Dishonored Bills” and loans to

“Substantially Bankrupt Borrowers” and “Potentially

Bankrupt Borrowers” under the newly defined

“Delinquent Loans.” The definition change caused

“Delinquent Loans” to increase by ¥185.3 billion,

among which ¥8 billion would fall into the category of

“Loans Past due with Respect to Interest Payment for a

Period of More than Three Months,” and ¥127.9 billion

into the category of “Restructured Loans,” respectively

according to the previous classification.  The remaining

increase of ¥49.3 billion consists of recovered loans

repaid in line with the terms and conditions but

included in “Delinquent Loans” since the same bor-

rower has other loans classified as “Delinquent Loans.”  

Risk-Monitored Assets under the Banking Law
Billions of Yen

Change 
attributable 
to change 

March March in loan 
<Non-consolidated> 2000 1999 Change categories

Loans in Bankruptcy and 
Dishonored Bills 19.5 32.2 (12.6) 0

Delinquent Loans 231.7 59.5 172.2 185.3
Loans Past Due with Respect 
to Interest Payments for 
a Period of More than 
Three Months 2.7 16.6 (13.9) (8.0)

Restructured Loans 42.0 143.6 (101.5) (127.9)
Total (a) 296.1 252.0 44.0 49.3

Loans and Bills 
Discounted (b) 4,445.9 4,756.2 (310.3) —

Ratio of Risk-Monitored 
Assets to Loans 
Outstanding (a)/(b) 6.66% 5.29% +1.37%

Billions of Yen
Change 

attributable 
to change 

March March in loan 
<Consolidated> 2000 1999 Change categories

Loans in Bankruptcy and 
Dishonored Bills 20.0 32.8 (12.8) 0.0

Delinquent Loans 241.5 65.1 176.4 192.2
Loans Past Due with Respect 
to Interest Payments for 
a Period of More than 
Three Months 2.9 17.0 (14.1) (13.6)

Restructured Loans 42.1 146.1 (104.0) (129.0)
Total (a) 306.6 261.2 45.4 49.5
Loans and Bills 
Discounted (b) 4,437.0 4,746.6 (309.6) —

Ratio of Risk-Monitored 
Assets to Loans 
Outstanding (a) / (b) 6.91% 5.50% +1.41%
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Disclosed Assets under the Financial Revitalization Law

Financial Revitalization Law requires banks to disclose

the results of self-assessment since the interim term

ended September 1999, while the Bank disclosed the

results since the term ended March 1999. The Bank

disclosed loans to “Legally Bankrupt Borrowers” and

“Substantially Bankrupt Borrowers” as “Bankrupt and

Quasi-Bankrupt Assets,” “Loans to Potentially Bankrupt

Borrowers” as “Doubtful Assets,” and “Loans Past due

with Respect to Interest Payment for a Period of more

than Three Months” and “Restructured Loans” under

the category of “Risk-Monitored assets” as “Substandard

Loans.”  At the end of the term under review, bad debt

according to the definition in the Financial

Revitalization Law amounted to ¥297.4 billion. On the

other hand, relevant amounts came to ¥296.1 billion

according to the definition in the Banking Law. The

difference of ¥1.3 billion was attributable to assets other

than Loans and Bills Discounted such as Liabilities for

Acceptance and Guarantees, Foreign Exchange, and

Suspense Payments. 

Disclosed Assets under the Financial Revitalization Law 
Billions of Yen

March March 
2000 1999 Change

Bankrupt and Quasi-Bankrupt Assets (a) 71.2 121.5 (50.3)
Doubtful Assets (b) 181.4 191.1 (9.7)
Substandard Loans (c) 44.8 8.0 36.8 
Problem Assets (A)=(a)+(b)+(c) 297.4 320.6 (23.2)
Normal Assets (d) 4,259.8 4,493.1 (233.3)
Total (B)=(A)+(d) 4,557.2 4,813.7 (256.5)
Ratio of Problem Assets (A)/(B) 6.52% 6.66% (0.13%)
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 Self-Assessment: Classification of Borrowers, Disclosed Assets, and Reserves (Billions of Yen)

1.3

Other Assets 

Self-Assessment
Classification 
of Borrowers

(Loans and other assets)

Legally Bankrupt 
Borrowers

Substantially 
Bankrupt Borrowers

Potentially 
Bankrupt Borrowers

Reserve Ratio: 74.38% 

Borrowers 
Requiring Caution

(Substandard Borrowers)
Reserve Ratio: 19.00%

Borrowers requiring 
caution (Other than 

Substandard Borrowers)
Reserve Ratio: 2.82%

Normal Borrowers Reserve Ratio: 0.11% 

Disclosed Assets 
under Financial 

Revitalization Law

(Loans and other assets)

Bankrupt and 
Quasi-Bankrupt Assets  

71.2

Doubtful Assets
181.4

Substandard Loans 
44.8

Normal Assets
4,259.8

Total disclosed amounts 

Risk-Monitored 
Assets under 

the Banking Law

(Loans)

Loans in Bankruptcy and 
Dishonored Bills  19.5

Delinquent Loans
231.7

Loans Past Due with Respect 
to Interest Payments for 

More than Three Months  2.7
Restructured loans  42.0

Normal Loans
(Undisclosed)

4,149.8

Total disclosed amounts

Reserve Ratio: 100%

296.1 297.4 – =



Strategic Tie-up 

Status of Kanto Regional Banks’ Business
Research Council 
In May 1999, the Joyo Bank, together with The Gunma

Bank, Ltd., The Yamanashi Chuo Bank, Ltd., and The

Hachijuni Bank, Ltd., set up the Kanto Regional Banks’

Business Research Council. The aim of the Council is to

conduct collaborative research related to potential ratio-

nalization measures and new business initiatives for

each of the four participating banks. The fundamental

policy guiding its research is to “improve efficiency and

reinforce negotiating power and competitiveness.” Main

research goals are to reduce duplicative investments and

other costs, initiate a new strategic IT investments, and

develop plans for joint business, product development,

and purchasing activities. 

Joint development and operation of systems 

The Council has cited two objectives in assessing the

adoption of a joint system by the four banks: (1) The

need to build a system with high strategic value in the

areas of management strategy and sales promotion; and

(2) The need to build a low-cost systems development

and operation framework. To strengthen momentum

toward adoption of a joint system, in November 1999

the Council initiated the System Unification Project, and

has since studied the implications of various scenarios. 

An operational core system for the four banks would be

able to perform basic functions 24 hours a day, 365

days a year, and it could be used for the next six to 10

years. By contrast, adoption of a decentralized system

would result in ballooning investments to keep abreast

of IT progress. If each bank undertakes independent

development, a decentralized system would account for

around 30% of each bank’s total system-related

expenses 10 years from now. 

1st step in unification: 

Joint development of a decentralized system for a new

IT and other investments 

Seeking to significantly reduce development costs, the

Council will place top priority on joint development of a

decentralized system, and on connecting the system

with each bank’s operational core system using the

access hub method. 

2nd step in unification: 

Joint development and application of an operational

core system 

Since there will be little need to upgrade the system in

the near future, the Council will consider joint develop-

ment and operation of a core system while closely mon-

itoring the life cycles of each bank’s system. 

Specific items under consideration 

Joint initiatives in defined contribution pension plans 

The Council is pursuing joint research in such areas as

system design, administrative process flows, and prod-

uct development. Seeking to link up with a record-

keeping company, the Council worked with IBM to

develop a connection method using a common center.

This resulted in the adoption of the common connection

system of Japan Record-Keeping Network Co., Ltd. 

It is currently predicted that the number of partici-

pating banks will exceed the initial forecast of 20. 

Other areas under consideration 

The Council is studying a variety of other initiatives,

including unification of securities systems, development

of a consolidated accounting system and Notes-applica-

tions, preferential treatment for various commissions,

marketing strategies for individual customers, sales

channel and card-related strategies, and joint develop-

ment and adoption of financial products. 

Construction and reinforcement of operating systems 

In order to strengthen the functions of the “Kanto

Regional Banks’ Business Research Council” and further

reinforce the Council’s promotional capabilities, the four

banks jointly set up the Promotional Office in Tokyo.

The Office reports to the Council’s Committee. 
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Strategy for the Insurance Business
In April 2001, banks are scheduled to begin over-the-

counter sales of insurance products. Life insurance firms

have already started sharing business, even with insur-

ance agencies that have close relationships with banks.

Such deregulation in the field of insurance sales will

present major business opportunities for banks. 

Joyo Bank is aggressively pursuing such opportuni-

ties as a matter of policy. We will build new alliances

with insurance companies and set up a framework for

selling insurance products. 

In the past, agencies with close links to banks have

tended to form dedicated alliances with single insurance

firms. Recently, however, they have started sharing

business with large life insurance firms in order to meet

the diversifying and sophisticated needs of customers.
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Current System Operating Cost (without Joint Operations) and Estimated Cost in 2010

Aggregate System 
Operating Cost (4 Banks)

Discrete Systems’ 
Operating Cost

Core System Operating 
and Development Cost

Annual Aggregate 
System Operating Cost

10% of Total

90% of Total

¥30 Billion 
at Present

30% of Total 
(Increase in 

IT Investments)

70% of Total

¥36 Billion in 2010

Top-Priority on 
Joint Development 

and Operations

Aiming at 
Future Integration
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Breakdown of Depositors
Billions of Yen Percentage against the Total

March 31 2000 1999 2000 1999

Domestic Offices:

Individuals ¥4,250 ¥4,105 73.17% 71.45%

Corporations 994 1,043 17.12 18.16

Other 564 597 9.71 10.39

Total 5,808 5,746 100.00 100.00%

Foreign Offices:

Total 95 105 — —

Total ¥5,904 ¥5,851

Deposits exclude negotiable certificates of deposit.

Lendings / Deposits Ratio
(%)

March 31 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996

75.1 81.17 83.28 78.63 78.53

Deposits per Branch and per Employee
Millions of Yen and U.S. Dollars

Deposit Balance Deposit Balance
March 31 per Branch per Employee

2000 ¥37,461 US$353 ¥1,419 US$13

1999 37,081 1,359

1998 37,632 1,331

1997 39,950 1,359

1996 40,781 1,309

US$1=¥106.15

Composition of Time Deposits by Type and Maturity
Billions of Yen

Less than 3 Months 6 Months 1 Year to 2 Years to 3 Years and Total
3 Months to Less then to Less than Less than Less than Over

March 31,2000 6 Months 1 Year 2 Years 3 Years

Time Deposits with

Deregulated Interest Rate (Fixed) ¥1,078.8 ¥587.8 ¥1,165.3 ¥350.7 ¥364.4 ¥74.2 ¥3,621.5

Time Deposits with 

Deregulated Interest Rate (Floating) 0.2 0.2 0.6 0.7 0.8 — 2.7

Other 85.7 10.6 0 1.0 0 0 97.4

Total ¥1,164.8 ¥598.7 ¥1,166.0 ¥352.5 ¥365.3 ¥74.2 ¥3,721.7

Note: Installment time deposits are not included.

Bank Data File

THE JOYO BANK, LTD.

NOITCESLAICNANIF
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200

0
96 97 98 99 00

600

800

1,000

(Millions of Yen)

Lendings per 
Employee

400

Breakdown of Borrowers
Millions of Yen

Component Component
March 31 2000 Ratio 1999 Ratio

Manufacturing ¥ 708,628 15.96% ¥ 772,828 16.29%

Agriculture 15,188 0.34 18,965 0.40

Forestry 414 0.01 384 0.01

Fishery 10,144 0.23 10,621 0.22

Mining 17,789 0.40 16,162 0.34

Construction 337,681 7.60 390,817 8.24

Wholesale and Retailing 796,005 17.92 898,122 18.93

Banking and Insurance 242,593 5.46 287,746 6.06

Real Estate 585,532 13.18 639,080 13.47

Transportation and Communication 108,534 2.44 105,663 2.23

Utilities (Electricity, Gas, Water Supplies) 17,985 0.41 21,798 0.46

Services 534,724 12.04 587,336 12.38

Municipalities 380,008 8.56 328,057 6.91

Others 685,923 15.45 667,061 14.06

Total ¥4,441,156 100.00% ¥4,744,640 100.00%

Overdrafts and loans through foreign branches are not included.

Analysis of Loans by Application
March 31 Capital Investments (%) Operating Funds (%) Total (%)

2000 38.7 61.3 100.0

1999 36.5 63.5 100.0

1998 34.0 66.0 100.0

1997 32.3 67.7 100.0

1996 30.1 69.9 100.0

Secured and Guaranteed Loans
(%)

March 31 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996

Secured Loans 25.2 28.2 29.0 30.1 30.5

Guaranteed Loans 44.8 41.6 38.0 37.2 33.8

Credit Loans 30.0 30.2 33.0 32.7 35.7

Total 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0

Lendings per Branch and per Employee
Millions of Yen and U.S. Dollars Millions of Yen and U.S. Dollars

Lendings Balance Lendings Balance
March 31 per Branch per Employee

2000 ¥28,138 US$265 ¥1,066US$10

1999 30,102 1,103

1998 31,340 1,109

1997 31,413 1,069

1996 32,027 1,028

US$1=¥106.15

Loans to Small- and Medium-sized Enterprises
Billions of Yen Percentage against the Total

March 31 2000 1999 2000 1999

Small- and Medium-sized Enterprises ¥3,042 ¥3,079 68.50% 64.90%

Other 1,399 1,665 31.50 35.10

Total 4,441 ¥4,744 100.00% 100.00%

Note: The figures represent those before in-house transit accounts are reconciled, and no overdrafts and no special 
international financial transaction accounts at the overseas and domestic offices are included.

NOITCESLAICNANIF
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Consumer / Housing Loans
Billions of Yen

March 31 2000 1999

Consumer Loans ¥220 ¥218

Housing Loans 487 462

Total ¥707 ¥681

Composition of Loans Type and Maturity
Billions of Yen

Less than More than More than More than Over Unspecified Total
1 Year 1 Year to 3 Year to 5 Year to 7 Years Over

March 31,2000 3 Years 5 Years 7 Years

Floating Interest Rate ¥        — ¥475.5 ¥293.0 ¥162.2 ¥383.4 ¥183.9 ¥        —

Fixed Interest Rate — 201.4 170.2 113.8 498.6 134.5 —

Total ¥1,828.9 ¥676.9 ¥463.2 ¥276.1 ¥882.0 ¥318.4 ¥4,445.9

Analysis of Reserve for Possible Loan Losses
Millions of Yen

March 31 2000 1999

General Reserve ¥27,103 ¥ 33,985

Specific Reserve 68,674 125,904

Country Risk Reserve 0 393

Total ¥95,778 ¥160,283

Non-Performing Loans
Risk-Monitored Assets under The Banking Law

Non-Consolidated Millions of Yen

March 31 2000 1999

Loans in bankruptcy and Dishonored Bills ¥ 19,597 ¥ 32,208

Delinquent Loans 231,752 59,549

Loans Past Due with Respect to Interest Payments for a Period of More than Three Months 2,707 16,683

Restructured Loans 42,086 143,614

Total ¥296,144 ¥252,055

Ratio of Risk Management Assets to Loans outstanding 6.66% 5.29%

Consolidated Millions of Yen

March 31 2000 1999

Loans in bankruptcy and Dishonored Bills ¥ 20,048 ¥ 32,851

Delinquent Loans 241,525 65,135

Loans Past Due with Respect to Interest Payments for a Period of More than Three Months 2,909 17,085

Restructured Loans 42,130 146,151

Total ¥306,613 ¥261,223

Ratio of Risk Management Assets to Loans outstanding 6.91% 5.50%

Disclose Assets under the Financial Revitalization Law
Non-Consolidated Millions of Yen

March 31 2000 1999

Bankrupt and Quasi-Bankrupt Assets ¥ 71,221 ¥ 121,467

Doubtful Assets 181,400 191,053

Substandard Loans 44,795 8,032

Normal Assets 4,259,780 4,493,108

Total ¥4,557,198 ¥4,813,660

Ratio of Problem Assets 6.52% 6.66%

NOITCESLAICNANIF
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Securities / Deposits Ratio
(%)

March 31 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996

Securities / Deposits Ratio 23.60 18.98 20.96 24.1 23.5

Deposits include negotiable certificates of deposit.

Composition of Securities Holdings by Type and Maturity
Billions of Yen

Less than More than 1 More than 3 More than 5 More than 7 Over 10 Unspecified Total
1 Year Year to Years to Years to Years to Years Over

March 31,2000 3 Years 5 Years 7 Years 10 Years

Government Bonds ¥       — ¥106.1 ¥190.2 ¥82.0 ¥12.9 ¥       — ¥       — ¥391.4

Local Government Bonds 0.4 6.0 16.3 66.5 187.7 6.0 — 283.1

Corporate Bonds 4.0 24.6 63.8 16.3 8.4 — — 117.4

Corporate Stocks — — — — — — 201.4 201.4

Others 26.3 108.6 98.4 28.6 43.1 96.6 1.6 403.6

Foreign Corporate Bonds 24.3 78.6 97.4 26.5 43.0 96.6 — 366.6

Foreign Corporate Stocks — — — — — — 0 0

Securities Lent — — — 0 — — — 0

Note: Corporate Bonds including treasury stocks.

International Business Assets 
Billions of Yen

March 31 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996

¥617 ¥623 ¥762 ¥1,211 ¥1,330

Shareholders’ Equity
Millions of Yen and U.S. Dollars

Shareholders’ Equity /
March 31 Common Stock Surplus & Reserves Shareholders’ Equity Deposits Ratio

2000 ¥85,113 ¥291,852 ¥376,965 US$3,551 6.3%

1999 85,113 289,343 374,456 6.3

1998 85,113 213,676 298,790 5.0

1997 85,113 275,292 360,405 5.7

1996 68,858 256,857 325,715 5.1

US$1=¥106.15

Earnings
Millions of Yen and U.S. Dollars

Income (Loss) before
Years Ended March 31 Total Income Total Expenses Income Taxes Net Income (Loss)

2000 ¥189,691 ¥170,587 ¥19,103 ¥11,042 US$104

1999 241,461 229,370 12,090 5,351

1998 263,414 306,765 (43,352) (57,215)

1997 246,748 240,565 6,183 6,029

1996 319,319 281,371 37,948 5,240

1995 302,683 281,922 20,761 8,659

US$1=¥106.15

Per Share of Common Stock
Yen

Years Ended March 31 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996

Per Share Earnings ¥12.52 ¥6.04 ¥(64.67) ¥7.26 ¥6.51

Per Share Dividends 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.50

Dividend Propensity (%) 39.8 82.7 — 68.8 84.4

NOITCESLAICNANIF
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Average Balances, Interest and Average Interest Rates
Millions of Yen

2000 1999

Average Interest Average Rate Average Interest Average Rate
Balance Balance

Interest Earning Assets:

Domestic Operations ¥6,041,879 ¥126,358 2.09% ¥6,093,319 ¥139,380 2.28%

344,776* 1,041* 228,954* 952*

International Operations 597,924 27,111 4.53% 586,084 34,017 5.80%

Total ¥6,295,027 ¥152,428 2.42% ¥6,450,449 ¥172,445 2.67%

Interest Bearing Liabilities:

Domestic Operations ¥5,783,108 ¥18,202 0.31% ¥5,903,244 ¥24,085 0.40%

International Operations 612,738 24,497 3.99% 575,137 31,969 5.55%

344,777* 1,041* 228,954* 952*

Total ¥6,051,069 ¥41,658 0.68% ¥6,249,427 ¥55,102 0.88%

*: Internal transaction between domestic sector and international sector.

Margin on Funds
%

March 31 2000 1999

Yield on Funds

Domestic Operations 2.09 2.28

International Operations 4.53 5.80

Total 2.42 2.67

Cost of Funds

Domestic Operations 1.59 1.68

International Operations 4.37 6.00

Total 1.95 2.12

Overall Margin on Funds

Domestic Operations 0.50 0.60

International Operations 0.16 (0.20)

Total 0.47 0.55

Capital Structure
Billions of Yen

Consolidated 2000 1999

Tier I

Common Shareholders’ Equity ¥ 359.6 ¥ 359.0

Tier II Capital Included as Tier I — —

Total Adjusted Tier I Capital 359.6 359.0

Tier II

Land Revaluation Excess, after 55% Discount 13.1 14.0

Reserve for Possible Loan Losses, Excluding Specific Reserve 28.4 35.8

Other 55.0 55.0

Tier II Capital Included as Tier I — —

Total Adjusted Tier II Capital 96.6 104.9

Tier II Capital Included as Qualifying Capital 96.6 104.9

Total Capital 456.2 463.9

Total Risk-adjusted Assets 4,006.4 4,278.1

Capital Adequacy Ratio 11.38% 10.84%

Notes: 1. The ratio of capital to risk-adjusted assets is based on the Ministry of Finance guidelines formulated in accordance with 
the BIS agreement.

2. Capital adequacy ratios are calculated on a consolidated basis.

NOITCESLAICNANIF
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Off-Balance Sheet Transactions
Derivative Financial Instruments Transactions and Forward Foreign Exchange Contracts

Billions of Yen

2000 1999

Contract Amounts Contract Amounts
and Notional Credit Risk and Notional Credit Risk

March 31 Principal Amounts Equivalent Amounts Principal Amounts Equivalent Amounts

Interest-Rate and Currency Swaps ¥534.0 ¥17.4 ¥656.2 ¥23.1

Forward Foreign Exchange Contracts 45.5 1.1 132.3 2.2

Interest-Rate and Currency Options — — — —

Other Derivative Financial Instruments 0 0 0.3 0

(Including Cap Transactions)

Total ¥579.6 ¥18.5 ¥788.9 ¥25.3

Notes: 1. The above figures are computed according to capital adequacy guidelines set by the BIS. To compute the credit risk equivalent
amounts, the current-exposure method was applied.

2. The contract and notional amounts of transactions that are excluded in the capital adequacy guidelines set by the BIS, and
foreign exchange related transactions for which the original contracts have a duration of 14 days or less are shown below.

Billions of Yen

2000 1999

Contract Amounts Contract Amounts
and Notional and Notional

March 31 Principal Amounts Principal Amounts

Interest-Rate and Currency Swaps ¥ — ¥ —

Forward Foreign Exchange Contracts 1.2 22.0

Interest-Rate and Currency Options — 8.8

Other Derivative Financial Instruments 13.2 27.7

Total ¥14.5 ¥58.9

Credit-Related Transactions
Billions of Yen

2000 1999

March 31 Contract Amounts Contract Amounts

Commitments to Extend Credit ¥ 898.3 ¥1,005.4

Guarantee Contracts 88.7 100.7

Others — —

Total ¥ 987.0 ¥1,106.2

Note: The above figures are computed according to capital adequacy guidelines set by the BIS. To compute the credit risk equivalent
amounts, the current-exposure method was applied.

Stock Quotations
Yen

Number of Shares
Months Transacted (in thousands) High Quotation Lowest Quotation

March 2000 11949 419 370

February 2000 14020 440 370

January 2000 6016 483 430

NOITCESLAICNANIF
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Millions of Yen

Consolidated 2000 1999

Balance Sheets
(As of March 31)

Securities* ¥1,397,394 ¥1,141,326
Loans and Bills Discounted 4,437,071 4,746,698
Foreign Exchange 4,362 3,866
Other Assets 1,028,964 1,012,226
Reserve for Possible Loan Losses** (98,710) (165,919)

Total Assets 6,769,081 6,738,197

Deposits 5,910,867 5,845,111
Foreign Exchange 131 215
Other Liabilities 479,119 513,327
Total Liabilities 6,390,117 6,358,653
Minority Interests 2,058 4,329
Common Stock 85,113 85,113
Reserves and Retained Earnings*** 291,793 290,102

Total Liabilities, Minority Interests and Shareholders’ Equity ¥6,769,081 ¥6,738,197

Statements of Income
(For the Years Ended March 31)

Total Income ¥ 208,422 ¥ 262,710
Total Expenses 191,097 253,120
Income before Income Taxes and Minority Interests 17,324 9,590
Income Taxes 8,640 5,685
Minority Interests in Net (Loss) Income of Consolidated Subsidiaries (2,245) 181

Net Income ¥ 10,930 ¥ 3,724

THE JOYO BANK, LTD.

Millions of Yen

Non-Consolidated 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996

Balance Sheets
(As of March 31)

Securities* ¥1,397,083 ¥1,112,353 ¥1,246,637 ¥1,533,627 ¥1,515,879
Loans and Bills Discounted 4,445,943 4,756,216 4,951,788 4,994,740 5,060,291
Foreign Exchange 4,362 3,871 4,556 4,858 4,421
Other Assets 978,831 976,671 881,664 920,310 1,059,299
Reserve for Possible Loan Losses** (95,778) (160,283) (156,400) (64,227) (65,365)

Total Assets 6,730,441 6,688,828 6,928,245 7,389,308 7,574,525

Deposits 5,918,971 5,858,946 5,945,868 6,352,170 6,443,409
Foreign Exchange 131 220 441 336 377
Other Liabilities 434,374 455,206 683,145 676,397 805,025
Total Liabilities 6,353,476 6,314,372 6,629,454 7,028,903 7,248,811
Common Stock 85,113 85,113 85,113 85,113 68,857
Reserves and Retained Earnings*** 291,852 289,343 213,676 275,292 256,857

Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity ¥6,730,441 ¥6,688,828 ¥6,928,245 ¥7,389,308 ¥7,574,525

Statements of Income
(For the Years Ended March 31)

Total Income ¥ 189,691 ¥   241,461 ¥   263,414 ¥   246,748 ¥   319,319
Total Expenses 170,587 229,370 306,765 240,565 281,371
Income (Loss) before Income Taxes 19,103 12,090 (43,352) 6,182 37,948
Income Taxes 8,060 6,739 13,863 153 32,708

Net Income (Loss) ¥ 11,042 ¥       5,351 ¥    (57,215) ¥       6,029 ¥       5,240

** Includes Securities Lent.
** In conformity with a revision of the enforcement regulations of the Banking Law, with effect from the year ended March 31, 2000, the Reserve for

possible Loan Losses formerly shown in the liabilities, is presented as deduction from assets on the Balance Sheets.
*** Includes capital surplus, reserves, and retained earnings which are classified under Shareholders’ Equity on the Balance Sheets.

Time Series Summary of Financial Data

NOITCESLAICNANIF

THE JOYO BANK, LTD. AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES
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Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars (Note 2)

March 31, 2000 1999 2000 1999

Assets

Cash and Due from Banks (Note 4) ¥ 308,372 ¥   287,857 $ 2,905,058 $ 2,711,794

Call Loans and Bills Purchased 156,007 188,593 1,469,684 1,776,665

Commercial Paper and Other Debt Purchased 66,149 38,903 623,165 366,490

Trading Assets (Note 5) 101,446 98,042 955,685 923,617

Money Held in Trust (Note 19) 40,000 32,000 376,825 301,460

Securities (Notes 6, 7 and 19) 1,397,394 1,141,326 13,164,333 10,752,011

Reserve for Devaluation of Investment Securities (2) — (19) —

Loans and Bills Discounted (Note 8) 4,437,071 4,746,698 41,800,009 44,716,891

Foreign Exchange 4,362 3,866 41,092 36,420

Other Assets  56,051 53,854 528,035 507,338

Premises and Equipment (Notes 3 and 16) 133,547 139,092 1,258,097 1,310,334

Deferred Tax Assets (Note 9) 78,683 72,501 741,243 683,005

Customers’ Liabilities for Acceptances and Guarantees 88,707 101,379 835,675 955,054

Reserve for Possible Loan Losses (98,710) (165,919) (929,911) (1,563,061)

Total Assets ¥6,769,081 ¥6,738,197 $63,769,015 $63,478,068

Liabilities, Minority Interests and Shareholders’ Equity
Liabilities

Deposits (Notes 7 and 10) ¥5,910,867 ¥5,845,111 $55,684,097 $55,064,634

Call Money and Bills Sold 129,363 125,887 1,218,681 1,185,934

Trading Liabilities (Note 11) 745 1,446 7,018 13,622

Borrowed Money (Note 7) 95,947 119,713 903,881 1,127,772

Foreign Exchange 131 215 1,234 2,025

Other Liabilities 124,131 128,610 1,169,392 1,211,587

Reserve for Retirement Allowances 18,810 18,819 177,202 177,286

Reserve for Possible Losses on Sales of Loans 5,850 3,279 55,110 30,890

Reserve for Other Contingent Losses 3,485 1,182 32,830 11,135

Deferred Tax Liabilities for Land Revaluation (Notes 3 and 9) 12,077 13,006 113,772 122,524

Acceptances and Guarantees 88,707 101,379 835,675 955,054

Total Liabilities 6,390,117 6,358,653 60,198,935 59,902,524

Minority Interests 2,058 4,329 19,387 40,781

Shareholders’ Equity

Common Stock 85,113 85,113 801,818 801,818

Capital Surplus 58,574 58,574 551,804 551,804

Land Revaluation Reserve, Net of Tax (Notes 3 and 9) 17,108 18,259 161,168 172,011

Retained Earnings 216,342 213,548 2,038,078 2,011,756

Treasury Stock (1) (0) (9) (0)

Parent Company’s Stock Held by Subsidiaries (231) (280) (2,176) (2,638)

Total Shareholders’ Equity 376,905 375,214 3,550,682 3,534,752

Total Liabilities, Minority Interests and Shareholders’ Equity ¥6,769,081 ¥6,738,197 $63,769,015 $63,478,068

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

THE JOYO BANK, LTD. AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Balance Sheets

NOITCESLAICNANIF
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Thousands of 
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars (Note 2)

For the Years Ended March 31, 2000 1999 2000 1999

Income
Interest Income:

Interest on Loans and Discounts ¥109,372 ¥119,325 $1,030,353 $1,124,116

Interest and Dividends on Securities 34,453 42,466 324,569 400,056

Other Interest Income 8,483 14,197 79,915 133,744

Fees and Commissions 16,602 16,010 156,401 150,824

Trading Revenue (Note 12) 111 862 1,045 8,120

Other Operating Income 3,000 23,238 28,261 218,916

Other Income 36,397 46,606 342,882 439,057

Total Income 208,422 262,710 1,963,466 2,474,894

Expenses
Interest Expenses:

Interest on Deposits 19,080 31,061 179,745 292,614

Interest on Borrowings and Rediscounts (Note 13) 6,528 8,580 61,497 80,829

Other Interest Expenses 16,762 19,589 157,908 184,540

Fees and Commissions 4,261 4,393 40,141 41,384

Trading Expenses (Note 14) 45 185 423 1,742

Other Operating Expenses 4,982 4,532 46,933 42,694

General and Administrative Expenses 77,567 79,658 730,730 750,428

Other Expenses (Note 15) 61,868 105,117 582,835 990,268

Total Expenses 191,097 253,120 1,800,254 2,384,550

Income before Income Taxes and Minority Interests 17,324 9,590 163,203 90,343

Income Taxes:

Current 15,686 18,695 147,772 176,118

Deferred (Note 9) (7,046) (13,010) (66,378) (122,563)

Minority Interests in Net (Loss)Income of Consolidated Subsidiaries (2,245) 181 (21,149) 1,705

Net Income 10,930 3,724 102,967 35,082

Retained Earnings 
Balance at Beginning of Year 213,548 155,968 2,011,756 1,469,317

Reversal of Land Revaluation Reserve 1,214 — 11,436 —

Cumulative Effect on Prior Years of Adopting Deferred Tax Accounting — 58,276 — 548,996

Appropriations:

Cash Dividends (4,411) (4,420) (41,555) (41,640)

Decrease Due to Exclusion of a Subsidiary (762) — (7,179) —

Retirement of Treasury Stock (4,177) — (39,350) —

Balance at End of Year ¥216,342 ¥213,548 $2,038,078 $2,011,756

Yen U.S. Dollars (Note 2)

Per Share
Net Income ¥12.40 ¥4.21 $0.117 $0.040

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

THE JOYO BANK, LTD. AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Income and Retained Earnings
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Thousands of
For the Year Ended March 31, 2000 Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars (Note 2)

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Income before Income Taxes and Minority Interests ¥ 17,324 $ 163,203
Depreciation 16,094 151,615
Amortization of Consolidation Differences 4 37
Net Decrease in Reserve for Possible Loan Losses (67,208) (633,141)
Net Increase in Reserve for Devaluation of Investment Securities 2 19
Net Increase in Reserve for Possible Losses on Sales of Loans 2,570 24,211
Net Increase in Reserve for Other Contingent Losses 2,303 21,695
Net Decrease in Reserve for Retirement Allowances (8) (75)
Interest and Dividend Income (152,309) (1,434,846)
Interest Expenses 42,372 399,170
Net Gains Related to Securities Transactions (11,431) (107,687)
Net Gains on Money Held in Trust (599) (5,642)
Foreign Exchange Losses, Net 57,897 545,426
Losses on Disposal of Premises and Equipment 670 6,311
Net Increase in Trading Assets (3,404) (32,067)
Net Decrease in Trading Liabilities (701) (6,603)
Net Decrease in Loans and Bills Discounted 309,624 2,916,853
Net Increase in Deposits 65,426 616,354
Net Increase in Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 7,066 66,566
Net Decrease in Borrowed Money Excluding Subordinated Borrowings (5,489) (51,709)
Net Increase in Due from Banks Excluding Cash Equivalents (12,924) (121,752)
Net Decrease in Call Loans and Others 5,339 50,296
Net Increase in Call Money and Bills Sold 3,476 32,746
Net Decrease in Cash for Collateral on Securities Lending (3,414) (32,162)
Net Increase in Foreign Exchange (Assets) (495) (4,663)
Net Decrease in Foreign Exchange (Liabilities) (83) (781)
Net Decrease in Due to Trust Account (16) (150)
Interest and Dividend Received 151,800 1,430,051
Interest Paid (45,167) (425,501)
Others, Net 19,052 179,481

Subtotal 397,771 3,747,253
Income Taxes Paid (25,578) (240,960)
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 372,192 3,506,283
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Purchases of Securities (758,293) (7,143,598)
Proceeds from Sales of Securities 314,703 2,964,700
Proceeds from Redemption of Securities 109,815 1,034,526
Increase in Money Held in Trust (9,000) (84,785)
Decrease in Money Held in Trust 1,000 9,420
Purchases of Premises and Equipment (13,645) (128,544)
Proceeds from Sales of Premises and Equipment 3,080 29,015
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities (352,338) (3,319,246)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Payment of Cash Dividends (4,411) (41,554)
Payment of Cash Dividends to Minority Interests (10) (94)
Purchases for Retirement of Treasury Stock (4,296) (40,471)
Proceeds from Sales of Treasury Stock 95 894
Net Cash Used in Financing Activities (8,622) (81,224)
Translation Adjustment for Cash and Cash Equivalents (24) (226)
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 11,207 105,577
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year  96,934 913,179
Effect of Decrease in Scope of Consolidated Subsidiaries,
Net of Cash and Cash Equivalents (0) (0)

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year (Note 4) ¥108,141 $1,018,756

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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1.  Basis of Presenting Consolidated Financial
Statements

The Joyo Bank, Ltd. (the “Bank”) and its consolidated domestic
subsidiaries maintain their accounts and records in accordance
with the provisions set forth in the Commercial Code of Japan and
the Securities and Exchange Law and in conformity with
accounting principles and practices generally accepted in Japan. 

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been
compiled from the audited consolidated financial statements of
the Bank which were prepared in accordance with accounting
principles and practices generally accepted in Japan from the
accounts and records maintained by the Bank and its
consolidated subsidiaries and were filed with the Minister of
Finance as required by the Securities and Exchange Law.
Accordingly, the accompanying consolidated financial statements
may differ in some material respects from accounting principles
and practices generally accepted in countries and jurisdictions
other than Japan.

In preparing the accompanying consolidated financial statements,
certain reclassifications have been made in the consolidated
financial statements issued domestically in order to present them in
a form which is more familiar to readers outside Japan. 

In addition, the notes to the consolidated financial statements
include information which is not required under accounting
principles generally accepted in Japan but is presented herein as
additional information.

In accordance with the “Standards for the Preparation of
Consolidated Cash Flow Statements, and so forth” (the “New
Standards”), effective the year ended March 31, 2000, the Bank is
required to prepare consolidated cash flow statements.

2.  Japanese Yen and U.S. Dollar Amounts
As permitted by the Securities and Exchange Law, amounts of less
than one million yen have been rounded off. As a result, the totals
shown in the accompanying consolidated financial statements
(both in yen and U.S. dollars) do not necessarily agree with the
sums of the individual amounts. Solely for the convenience of the
reader, the U.S. dollar amounts represent a translation of Japanese
yen amounts at ¥106.15 = US$1.00, the exchange rate prevailing on
March 31, 2000.

3.  Land Revaluation Reserve
In accordance with the Law concerning the Revaluation of Land,
the Bank revalued land held for its operations on March 31, 1998.
The net unrealized gain is stated in shareholders’ equity net of the
applicable income taxes as “Land Revaluation Reserve, Net of Tax.”

4.  Significant Accounting Policies
(a) Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the
Bank and 8 significant subsidiaries. Six subsidiaries have not been
consolidated because they are immaterial.

The equity method has not been applied to investments in its six
affiliated companies because they are immaterial. Investments in
unconsolidated subsidiaries and affiliates are stated at cost.

All significant inter-company transactions have been eliminated.
The difference between the cost of investments and the equity in
their net assets is fully charged to income in the year of acquisition.

(b) Translation of foreign currencies
Foreign currency-denominated assets and liabilities are translated
into Japanese yen at the rates prevailing at the balance-sheet date.

(c) Transactions for trading purposes
Transactions for “Trading purposes” (seeking to capture gains
arising from short-term changes in interest rates, currency
exchange rates or market prices of securities and other market-
related indices or from arbitrage between markets) are valued at
market or fair value, and included in “Trading Assets” and “Trading
Liabilities” on a trade-date basis. Profits and losses on trading
transactions are shown as “Trading Revenue” or “Trading Expenses.”

Among the trading assets and liabilities, securities and monetary
claims are carried at market value as of the balance sheet date.
Derivatives including swaps, futures, and options are valued
assuming settlement on the balance sheet date. 

No consolidated subsidiaries were engaged in trading activities or
other transactions in order to generate profit from short-term price
fluctuations.

(d) Securities
Securities are carried at cost determined by the moving-average
method.

Securities invested in certain trust funds and included in
“Money Held in Trust” are also carried at cost determined by
the moving-average method.

Securities held by the consolidated subsidiaries are carried
principally at cost determined by the moving-average method.

(e) Depreciation of premises and equipment
Depreciation of buildings held by the Bank is computed by the
declining-balance method, based on the rates prescribed by the
Corporation Tax Law, except for buildings acquired on and after
April 1, 1998 on which depreciation is computed by the straight-
line method, based on the rates prescribed by the Corporation
Tax Law. Depreciation of equipment is computed by the
declining-balance method, based on the rates prescribed by the
Corporation Tax Law.

Depreciation of premises and equipment held by the
consolidated subsidiaries is computed mainly by the declining-
balance method.

(f) Reserve for possible loan losses
The reserve for possible loan losses of the Bank is provided as
detailed below, in accordance with the internal rules for providing
reserves for possible loan losses:

For claims to debtors who are legally bankrupt (due to bankruptcy,
composition, etc.) or substantially bankrupt, a reserve is provided
based on the amount of the claims net of the amounts expected
to be collected through the disposal of collateral or through the
execution of guarantees.

For claims to debtors who are not currently bankrupt, but are
likely to become bankrupt, a reserve is provided based on the
amount considered necessary based on an overall solvency
assessment of the amount of claims net of the amounts expected
to be collected through the disposal of collateral or through the
execution of guarantees.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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For other claims, a reserve is provided based on historical 
loan-loss experience. A reserve for loans to specific foreign
borrowers (including the reserve for losses on overseas
investments provided pursuant to Article 55-2 of the Special
Taxation Measures Law) is provided based on the amount of
losses expected due to the political and economic situation in
those countries.

All claims are assessed by the Business Section (branches and
related head office divisions) based on the internal rules for self-
assessment of asset quality. The Corporate Audit Department,
which is independent from the Business Section, subsequently
conducts audits of their assessments, and a reserve is provided
based on the audit results.

The reserves of the consolidated subsidiaries are provided
based on their historical loan-loss experience.

For collateralized or guaranteed claims to debtors who are
legally bankrupt or substantially bankrupt, the amount of the
claims exceeding the estimated value of the collateral or
guarantees which is deemed uncollectible was written off in the
aggregate amount of ¥75,150 million.

In conformity with a revision to the enforcement regulations of
the Banking Law, which became effective the year ended March 31,
2000, the reserve, formerly shown in liabilities, is presented as a
deduction from assets in the balance sheets. Due to this change,
total assets and total liabilities fell by ¥98,710 million and by ¥98,710
million, respectively, from the amounts which would have been
recorded under the previous method of accounting.

(g) Reserve for retirement allowances
Under the terms of the retirement plan of the Bank and its
consolidated subsidiaries, substantially all employees are entitled
to a lump-sum payment at the time of retirement. The amount of
the retirement benefits is, in general, based on the length of service,
basic salary at the time of retirement and reason for retirement. The
reserve for retirement allowances is provided, at 100% of the
amount which would be required to be paid if all eligible employees
retired voluntarily at the balance sheet date.

In addition, the Bank has a contributory pension plan for its own
eligible employees.

(h) Reserve for possible losses on sales of loans
The reserve for possible losses on sales of loans is provided for 
future losses on sales of loans with real estate mortgages to the
Cooperative Credit Purchasing Co., Ltd. based on the estimated
fair value of each respective mortgage.

(i) Reserve for other contingent losses
The reserve for other contingent losses is provided based on the
estimated future losses on real estate mortgages associated with
the loans sold upon liquidation of the assets.

(j) Reserve for devaluation of investment securities
This reserve is provided to cover any future potential losses on
investments. Consideration is given to the financial situation of
the relevant companies in determining the amount to be
accounted for under the above reserve.

(k) Gains and losses resulting from revaluation of foreign
currency accounts

In accordance with the administrative notice entitled “Accounting
Procedures Related to Foreign Exchange Banks’ Transactions

in Foreign Currency-Denominated Assets and Currency Options
Contracts,” currency options transactions are valued at market
values prevailing at the balance sheet date (profits and losses
derived from forward foreign exchange contracts with more than
one year remaining before maturity are calculated based on the
market value of the contracts at the balance sheet date,
discounted at the long-term interest rate). Profits and losses
derived from the portion of spot exchange assets and liabilities
and forward contracts constituting funding-related swaps and
currency-related swaps made as an integral part of the funding
transactions are recognized on an accrual basis in accordance
with the above-mentioned administrative notice. Currency futures
transactions and currency options transactions are revalued at
market values at the balance sheet date in accordance with the
above-mentioned administrative notice.

(l) Income taxes
Income taxes comprise corporation, inhabitants’ and enterprise
taxes which, in the aggregate, resulted in a statutory tax rate of
approximately 41.6%.

Effective the year ended March 31, 1999, the Bank adopted
deferred tax accounting in conformity with the revised accounting
standards in Japan. As required, deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recorded based on the temporary differences between the
financial statements and the tax bases of the assets and liabilities. 

(m) Net income per share
Computations of net income per share of common stock are
based on the weighted average number of shares outstanding
during each period.

(n) Leases
Finance leases other than those which transfer the ownership
of the leased property to the Bank and its consolidated
subsidiaries are accounted for as operating leases.

(o) Statement of cash flows
Effective the year ended March 31, 2000, the Bank and its
subsidiaries are required to present consolidated statement of
cash flows in conformity with a revision to the Securities and
Exchange Law. Cash and cash equivalents in the statements of
cash flows represent cash and due from banks in the balance
sheets, excluding deposits with banks other than The Bank of
Japan, of the Bank and time deposits of the consolidated
subsidiaries.

March 31, 2000 Millions of Yen

Cash and Due from Banks ¥308,372
Deposits with Banks Other than The Bank of Japan of the Bank (200,071)
Time Deposits of the Consolidated Subsidiaries (160)

Cash and Cash Equivalents ¥108,141

5. Trading Assets

March 31, 2000 Millions of Yen

Trading Securities ¥ 1,151
Trading-Related Financial Derivatives  558
Other Trading Assets 99,737

Total ¥101,446

NOITCESLAICNANIF
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9. Deferred Tax Assets

Millions of Yen

March 31, 2000 1999

Deferred Tax Assets:
Excess Reserve for Possible Loan Losses ¥60,621 ¥55,034
Excess Reserve for Retirement Allowances 5,212 4,922
Excess Depreciation 4,468 3,827
Transfer to Reserve for Possible Losses on

Sales of Loans 2,420 1,856
Other 7,285 6,897
Valuation Allowance (1,311) —

Total 78,697 72,538

Deferred Tax Liabilities:
Reversal of Reserve for Possible Loan Losses 

after Elimination of Debt and Credits (14) (36)

Net Deferred Tax Assets ¥78,683 ¥72,501

The major reasons for the significant differences between the
statutory tax rate and the effective tax rate including the corporate
income tax rate and other tax rates after the adoption of tax-effect
accounting are summarized as follows:

Statutory Tax Rate 41.6%
Items Not Permanently Included in Income, 
such as Dividends Received –3.4%

Adjustment for Term-End Deferred 
Tax Assets Due to Tax Rate Revision 2.3%

Increase in Valuation Allowance 7.5%
Others 1.8%

Effective Tax Rate 49.8%

On March 30, 2000 the “Ordinance regarding the imposition of
enterprise taxes through external standards taxation on banks in
Tokyo” was passed by the Tokyo Municipal Assembly and was
made law. With this legislation, the standards for applying
enterprise tax will be amended from the fiscal year beginning
April 1, 2000. For the year ended March 31, 2000, income was
subject to enterprise tax, but for the future years the enterprise
tax will be levied on gross profits. This means that the enterprise
tax will not be included in the tax calculations for deferred tax
accounting. Therefore the tax rate applying when calculating the
Bank’s Deferred Tax Assets and Deferred Tax Liabilities is 41.3%
for the year ended March 31, 2000, as against 41.6% in the
previous year. The effect of this change results in a decrease in
Deferred Tax Assets of ¥367 million, and an increase in Income Tax
Expenses—Deferred booked for the year ended March 31, 2000 of
¥367 million. There is also a decrease in Deferred Tax Liability for
Land Revaluation of ¥64 million, and an increase in the Land
Revaluation Account of ¥64 million at March 31, 2000. 

On June 9, 2000 the “Ordinance regarding the imposition of
enterprise taxes through external standards taxation on banks in
Osaka” was passed by the Osaka Municipal Assembly and was
made law. With this legislation, the standards for applying
enterprise tax will be amended from the fiscal year beginning
April 1, 2001. But the influence of the tax rate applying when
calculating the Bank’s Deferred Tax Assets and Deferred Tax
Liabilities will be not important. The effect of this change results

6. Securities

March 31, 2000 Millions of Yen

Japanese Government Bonds ¥ 391,442
Japanese Local Government Bonds 283,156
Corporate Bonds 117,626
Corporate Stocks 201,504
Other Securities 403,663

Total ¥1,397,394

Securities include a ¥146 million investment in shares of an
affiliated company.

7. Pledged assets
Securities, amounting to ¥16,208 million at book value, were pledged
as collateral for deposits of ¥59,185 million as of March 31, 2000.

In addition to the above, securities, amounting to ¥65,249 million
at book value, were pledged as collateral in connection with
exchange settlements and futures transactions as of March 31, 2000.

A consolidated subsidiary pledged its lease receivables
amounting to ¥19,055 million as collateral for borrowed money of
¥15,334 million as of March 31, 2000.

8. Non-Performing Loans
In accordance with disclosure requirements under the Rules for
Bank Accounting in Japan, which became effective April 1, 1995,
the balance of Loans and Bills Discounted at March 31, 2000 and
1999 included the following non-performing loans:

Millions of Yen

March 31, 2000 1999

(a) Loans in Bankruptcy and Dishonored Bills ¥ 20,048 ¥ 32,851
(b) Delinquent Loans 241,525 65,135
(c) Loans Past Due with Respect to Interest Payments  

for a Period of More than Three Months 2,909 17,085
(d) Restructured Loans 42,130 146,151

Effective the year ended March 31, 2000, the Bank began to
eliminate uncollectible amounts directly from loans (See Note 4(f)).
The effect of this change was to reduce “loans in bankruptcy” and
“delinquent loans” as of March 31, 2000 by ¥21,354 million and
¥54,075 million, respectively.

Accrued interest had been recognized in conformity with the tax
law. Effective the year ended March 31, 2000, the Bank did not
recognize accrued interest on loans in bankruptcy, or substantially
or suspiciously in bankruptcy as a result of the Bank’s self-
assessment. The effect of this change was to reduce accrued interest
on “loans past due more than three months,” “restructured loans”
and “delinquent loans” as of March 31, 2000 by ¥13,667 million,
¥129,094 million and ¥192,277 million, respectively.
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in a decrease in Deferred Tax Assets of ¥ 54 million, and Deferred
Tax Liability for Land Revaluation of ¥ 8 million, respectively. The
actual effect of the change in tax rates will be clarified when the
amount is calculated based on the differences prevalent on March
31, 2001. Therefore the amounts given above are subject to
revision. 

10. Deposits

March 31, 2000 Millions of Yen

Current Deposits ¥2,023,048
Time Deposits 3,719,481
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 14,299
Other 154,037

Total ¥5,910,867

11. Trading Liabilities

March 31, 2000 Millions of Yen

Trading-Related Financial Derivatives ¥745

12. Trading Revenue

March 31, 2000 Millions of Yen

Revenue from Trading Securities ¥ 55
Other Trading Revenue 55

Total ¥111

13. Interest on Borrowings and Rediscounts

March 31, 2000 Millions of Yen

Call Money and Bills Sold ¥4,802
Borrowings 1,726

Total ¥6,528

14. Trading Expenses

March 31, 2000 Millions of Yen

Expenses on Trading-Related 
Financial Derivatives Transactions ¥45

15. Other Expenses

March 31, 2000 Millions of Yen

Provision for Possible Loan Losses ¥22,955
Losses on Disposal of Premises and Equipment 818
Other 38,095

Total ¥61,868

For the years ended March 31, 2000, “other expenses—other”
included losses on sales of loans with real estate mortgages to
the Cooperative Credit Purchasing Co., Ltd. of ¥144 million and
other institutions of ¥1,526 million, respectively.

16. Accumulated Depreciation of Premises and
Equipment

Accumulated depreciation of premises and equipment at March
31, 2000, was ¥156,689 million.

17. Segment Information
(a) Segment Information by type of business
Segment information by type of business for the year ended
March 31, 2000 is as follows:

Millions of Yen

Banking 
Operations Other Total Eliminations Consolidated

Ordinary Income:
Ordinary Income 
with External 
Customers ¥   187,924 ¥19,509 ¥   207,433 ¥ — ¥   207,433

Ordinary Income
from Internal 
Transactions 788 6,462 7,251 (7,251) —

Total 188,712 25,971 214,684 (7,251) 207,433
Ordinary Expenses 169,769 27,685 197,454 (7,175) 190,279

Ordinary Income 
(Loss), Net ¥ 18,942 ¥ (1,713) ¥     17,229 ¥       (75) ¥     17,153

Assets ¥6,733,392 ¥78,229 ¥6,811,621 ¥(42,540) ¥6,769,081
Depreciation 3,208 12,886 16,094 (0) 16,094
Capital Expenditures 5,656 12,250 17,907 — 17,907

Notes: 1. Ordinary income represents total income excluding gains on disposal of
premises and equipment and collection of claims written-off. Ordinary 
expenses represent total expenses excluding losses on disposal of premis-
es and equipment.

2. As described in Note 4, “Significant Accounting Policies,” the reserve for
possible loan losses is disclosed as the asset portion by a method under
which a lump-sum amount is deducted from the target assets. Due to this
change, assets of Banking Operations and of Other fell by ¥95,778 million
and ¥2,967 million, respectively, from the corresponding amounts which
would have been recorded under the previous method.

(b) Geographic Segment Information
Segment information by geographic area is not disclosed since
over 90% of the total consolidated assets are held within Japan.

(c) Ordinary Income from Foreign Operations
Segment information related foreign operations is not disclosed
since the income generated from foreign operations is considered
immaterial to the Bank’s total consolidated income.

18. Leases
(a) Finance leases
Finance leases, as lessee, at March 31, 2000 were as follows:

Millions of Yen

Equipment ¥371
Other —
Accumulated Depreciation (334)

Total ¥ 36

Future minimum lease payments receivable for finance leases
at March 31, 2000 were ¥36 million, of which ¥25 million was due
within one year.
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Total lease payments and depreciation under finance leases for
the year ended March 31, 2000 were ¥74 million and ¥74 million,
respectively. 

Finance leases, as lessor, at March 31, 2000 were as follows:

Millions of Yen

Equipment ¥59,217
Other 4,866
Accumulated Depreciation (31,533)

Total ¥32,550

Future minimum lease payments receivable for finance leases
at March 31, 2000 were ¥38,925 million, of which ¥12,348 million
was due within one year.

Total lease payments received and depreciation under finance
leases for the year ended March 31, 2000 were ¥13,830 million and
¥11,559 million, respectively. 

(b) Operating Leases
Future minimum lease payments for operating leases at March 31,
2000 were ¥1,071 million, of which ¥88 million was due within one year.

19 Market value information of marketable securities
Millions of Yen

Contract Market Unrealized
At March 31, 2000 Amounts Value Gain/(Loss)

Listed Securities:
Bonds ¥ 17,435 ¥ 18,091 ¥ 656
Stocks 194,448 331,222 136,773
Other 186,915 181,513 (5,402)

Total ¥398,799 ¥530,827 ¥132,028

Notes: 1. The securities in the above table (including Japanese government bonds,
Japanese local bonds and Japanese corporate bonds) are all listed. The
market value of listed securities is determined mainly by the closing price
at the term-end on the Tokyo Stock Exchange, or prices calculated using
the indicated yields announced by the Japan Securities Dealers
Association. The market value of others is determined mainly by the closing
price at term-end on the Tokyo Stock Exchange.

2. The table below covers unlisted securities for which it is possible to esti-
mate a market value.

Millions of Yen

Contract Market Unrealized
At March 31, 2000 Amounts Value Gain/(Loss)

Unlisted Securities:
Bonds ¥484,091 ¥486,878 ¥ 2,787
Stocks 2,025 5,171 3,145
Other 1,862 1,864 2

Total ¥487,978 ¥493,914 ¥ 5,935

The market values of unlisted securities are determined as follows:
Securities traded over the counter : transaction prices announced by the
Japan Securities Dealers Association 
Publicly offered bond : prices calculated using the indicated yield
announced by the Japan Securities Dealers Association 
Securities of investment trust : market prices announced by authorized
fund management companies

3. The book value of securities not included in the market-value information
provided above were as follows:
March 31, 2000 Millions of yen
Bonds................................................................................... ¥290,699
Stocks .................................................................................. 5,045
Others.................................................................................. 214,871

4. Trading securities and trading account securities are evaluated according to
the market prices, and the resulting profit or loss is included in the
Consolidated Statement of Income and therefore the profit and loss infor-
mation is omitted from the above table.

Market value information of money held in trust
Millions of Yen

Contract Market Unrealized
At March 31, 2000 Amounts Value Gain/(Loss)

Money Held in Trust ¥40,000 ¥40,045 ¥45

20 Derivative Financial Instruments Transactions
(1) Transactions

[1] Transactions include interest rate futures, options, swaps,
and interest-related forward delivery; currency swaps,
options, and forward foreign exchange contracts; and bond
futures and options.

[2] Policies: The Bank enters into derivatives transactions
mainly for hedging purposes to avoid the risk of interest-rate
fluctuations in the context of overall assets and liabilities.
The transactions are also used for trading purposes to
increase earnings over the short term.

[3] Purpose: The interest rate swaps are used to avoid the future
risk of a rise in interest rates on long-term fixed-rate assets
(such as fixed-rate housing loans). Interest rate options
(Interest rate caps) are used for hedging against any rise
over the upper limit interest rate on “long-term variable
interest-rate loans with upper interest rate limits.”

Interest rate and currency swaps are used to avoid the
growing risk of interest rate and exchange rate fluctuations
in foreign-currency dominated in investment securities.
Forward foreign exchange and currency options are used to
avoid the risk of exchange rate fluctuations arising from
transactions with customers.

The bond futures and options are used to avoid the risk of
price fluctuations, and earn profit in investment securities.

In addition, within certain transaction limits, interest rate
and bond futures trading is conducted to earn profit.

[4] Nature of Risks:
Derivatives transactions involve market risk and credit risk.
Market risk means the risk of losses from fluctuations in the
interest rate/currency exchange market, etc. Credit risk is the
risk that positions cannot be settled according to the original
contract terms due to the bankruptcy or insolvency of the
counterparty.

Basically there is no market risk, as transactions for the
purpose of hedging are carried out on the basis of assets 
and liabilities equivalent to the transaction values. Market
risk is limited to short-term trading transactions which are
aimed at increasing earnings.

As for credit risk, a credit limit is established for each 
customer in an effort to avoid a concentration of risk within
a limited number of customers.

The above transactions pose few substantial risks, as our
transactions were with highly trustworthy financial
institutions and corporations.

[5] Risk Management System: Balances at risk, unrealized
gain/loss, etc. on derivative transactions are managed on a
daily basis by the division in charge, and reported to the
Management Administration Division, which is
independently responsible for overall risk management, and
then submitted to the executives.



38

For trading transactions for the purpose of increasing short-
term earnings, transaction risk is managed within a certain limit
established in an attempt to avoid excessive exposure.
[6] Supplementary Explanations on Quantitative Information:

� Most interest rate swap transactions are mainly for the
purpose of hedging against fixed-rate loans.
Accordingly, the contract amount presented does not
represent the actual market exposure relating to each
derivative transaction.

� Unrealized loss amounts correspond to unrealized gain
amounts of the hedged assets (fixed-rate loans, etc.).

� Market values and unrealized gain and loss related to the
interest rate swaps do not represent the actual amounts
which will be received or paid in the future.

(2) Interest-Rate Derivatives

Millions of Yen

Market Unrealized
At March 31, 2000 Contract Amounts Value Gain/(Loss)

Transactions Listed on Exchanges:
Interest-Rate Futures:

Sold ¥— ¥—*2 ¥— ¥—
Bought — — — —

Interest-Rate Options:
Sold        Call — —*1 — — —

Put — —*1 — — —
Bought Call — —*1 — — —

Put — —*1 — — —
Over-the-Counter Transactions:

Forward Rate Agreements:
Sold — — — —
Bought — — — —

Interest-Rate Swaps:
Receivable Fixed Rate/

Payable Floating Rate 188,152 131,000 1,850 1,850
Receivable Floating Rate/

Payable Fixed Rate 185,977 139,729 (5,293) (5,293)
Receivable Floating Rate/

Payable Floating Rate 2,536 — 3 3
Interest-Rate Options:

Sold        Call — —*1 — — —
Put — —*1 — — —

Bought Call — —*1 — — —
Put — —*1 — — —

Other:
Sold — —*1 —*2 — —
Bought  54 0*1 44*2 0 (0)

Total (3,438)

*1 Option premiums recorded in the “Consolidated Balance Sheets”
*2 Over 1 year until settlement
Notes: 1. Determination of Market Value:

Market values for contracts listed on exchanges are the closing prices on
the Tokyo International Financial Futures Exchange or on other exchanges.

2. The Contract Amount Columns list the notional value of the swaps and the
contract value of futures, options and other derivatives.

3. Trading-related financial derivatives are not included in these amounts
because the gains (losses) are realized at year-end and recorded in the
statements of income.

The following table reflects the contract amounts and market value of the
Bank’s trading portfolio:

Millions of Yen

At March 31, 2000 Contract Amounts Market Value

Transactions Listed on Exchanges:
Interest-Rate Futures:

Sold ¥ — —* ¥ —
Bought — —* —

Interest-Rate Options:
Sold        Call — —* —

Put — —* —
Bought Call — —* —

Put — —* —
Over-the-Counter Transactions:

Forward Rate Agreements:
Sold — —
Bought — —

Interest-Rate Swaps:
Receivable Fixed Rate/

Payable Floating Rate 21,369 492
Receivable Floating Rate/

Payable Fixed Rate 21,369 (635)
Receivable Floating Rate/

Payable Floating Rate 16,000 (43)
Interest-Rate Options:

Sold        Call — —* —
Put — —* —

Bought Call — —* —
Put — —* —

Other:
Sold — —* —
Bought — —* —

* Original option premiums received or paid.
4. Details of Interest Rate Swaps

The period remaining with respect to the contract amounts (notional
principal), etc. is as follows:

Millions of Yen

Period Remaining

Within 1–3 Over
At March 31, 2000 1 Year Years 3 Years

Period Remaining: 
Receivable Fixed Rate/
Payable Floating Rate 
Swaps Notional Amount ¥ 67,460 ¥142,061 ¥ —
Average Fixed Rate Receivable 4.27% 0.94% —%
Average Floating Rate Payable 3.87% 0.21% —%

Receivable Floating Rate/
Payable Fixed Rate 
Swaps Notional Amount ¥ 56,555 ¥ 35,740 ¥115,050
Average Floating Rate Receivable 1.93% 0.83% 0.32%
Average Fixed Rate Payable 3.11% 2.94% 2.27%

Receivable Floating Rate/ 
Payable Floating Rate 
Swaps Notional Amount ¥ 2,536 ¥ 16,000 ¥ —
Average Floating Rate Receivable 6.82% 1.20% —%
Average Floating Rate Payable 6.61% 1.33% —%

Total ¥126,552 ¥193,802 ¥115,050
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(3) Currency Derivatives

Millions of Yen

Contract Market Unrealized
At March 31, 2000 Amounts Value Gain/(Loss)

Over-the-Counter Transactions:
Currency Swaps:

U.S. Dollars ¥ 89,561 ¥32,598*1 ¥ 68 ¥ 68
Switz. Francs 2,284 —*1 (206) (206)
Euro 49,191 —*1 (291) (291)
Other Currencies 11 —*1 (0) (0)

Total ¥141,048 ¥32,598*1 ¥(428) ¥(428)

*1 Over 1 year until settlement
Notes: 1. The Contract Amounts represent list the notional value of the swaps. 

2. Trading-related financial derivatives are not included in these amounts
because the gains (losses) are realized at the year-end and accounted for 
in the statements of income. But not applicable.

3. The table includes exchange swap transactions for the purpose of fund
raising and investment in various currencies, amounting to ¥42,382 million in
contract value, ¥(509) million in market value, ¥(509) million in unrealized
loss. Revaluated currency derivatives contract amounts are as follows:

Millions of Yen

Contract
At March 31, 2000 Amounts

Transactions Listed on Exchanges:
Currency Futures:

Sold ¥     —
Bought —

Currency Options:
Sold Call —(—)

Put —(—)
Bought Call —(—)

Put —(—)
Over-the-Counter Transactions:

Forward Foreign Exchange Contracts:
Sold 1,734
Bought 2,690

Currency Options:
Sold Call —(—)

Put —(—)
Bought Call —(—)

Put —(—)
Other:

Sold —
Bought —

Note: Option premiums recorded in the “Consolidated Balance Sheets.”

(4) Stock Derivatives

Not applicable as of March 31, 2000.

(5) Bond Derivatives
Millions of Yen

Market Unrealized
At March 31, 2000 Contract Amounts Value Gain/(Loss)

Transactions Listed on Exchanges:
Bond Futures:

Sold ¥13,570 —*2 ¥13,929 ¥(359)
Bought — —*2 — —

Bond Futures Options:
Sold        Call — —*1 —*2 — —

Put — —*1 —*2 — —
Bought Call — —*1 —*2 — —

Put — —*1 —*2 — —
Over-the-Counter Transactions:

Bond Options:
Sold        Call — —*1 —*2 — —

Put — —*1 —*2 — —
Bought Call — —*1 —*2 — —

Put — —*1 —*2 — —
Other:

Sold — —*2 — —
Bought  — —*2 — —

Total (359)

*1 Option premiums recorded in the “Consolidated Balance Sheets.”
*2 Over 1 year until settlement
Note: Trading-related financial derivatives are not included in these amounts

because the gains (losses) are realized at the year-end and accounted for 
in the statements of income. But not applicable.

(6) Commodity Derivatives

Not applicable as of March 31, 2000.

21. Subsequent Events
(1) The Board of Directors of the Bank, at a meeting held on April 28,
2000, approved the first and the second issues of unsecured bonds
on May 24, 2000 in amounts of ¥10,000 million and ¥5,000 million,
respectively.
(2) On May 31, 2000 Daihyaku Mutual Life Insurance Company
(“Daihyaku”) received an order for the partial suspension of business
from the Financial Supervisory Agency under the Insurance Business
Law. The Bank had loans to Daihyaku totaling ¥11,000 million as of
May 31, 2000, and the collectibility is uncertain as of the date of this
report.
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THE JOYO BANK, LTD.

Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars (Note 2)

March 31, 2000 1999 2000 1999

Assets

Cash and Due from Banks ¥ 307,106 ¥ 296,081 $ 2,893,132 $ 2,789,269

Call Loans and Bills Purchased 156,007 188,593 1,469,684 1,776,665

Commercial Paper and Other Debt Purchased 66,129 38,843 622,976 365,925

Trading Assets (Note 5) 101,446 98,042 955,685 923,617

Money Held in Trust 40,000 32,000 376,825 301,460

Securities (Notes 6 and 7) 1,397,083 1,112,353 13,161,403 10,479,067

Reserve for Devaluation of Investment Securities (2) — (19) —

Loans and Bills Discounted (Notes 8 and 9) 4,445,943 4,756,216 41,883,589 44,806,556

Foreign Exchange (Note 10) 4,362 3,871 41,092 36,467

Other Assets (Note 11) 44,765 41,138 421,714 387,545

Premises and Equipment (Notes 3 and 12) 99,058 103,147 933,188 971,709

Deferred Tax Assets (Note 13) 75,611 69,443 712,303 654,196

Customers’ Liabilities for Acceptances and Guarantees 88,707 109,379 835,675 1,030,419

Reserve for Possible Loan Losses (95,778) (160,283) (902,289) (1,509,967)

Total Assets ¥6,730,441 ¥6,688,828 $63,405,002 $63,012,981

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity

Liabilities

Deposits (Notes 7 and 14) ¥5,918,971 ¥5,858,946 $55,760,442 $55,194,969

Call Money and Bills Sold 129,363 125,887 1,218,681 1,185,935

Trading Liabilities (Note 15) 745 1,446 7,018 13,622

Borrowed Money 66,683 71,968 628,195 677,983

Foreign Exchange (Note 10) 131 220 1,234 2,072

Other Liabilities (Note 16) 109,959 111,528 1,035,883 1,050,664

Reserve for Retirement Allowances 18,722 18,754 176,373 176,674

Reserve for Possible Losses on Sales of Loans 5,850 3,279 55,110 30,890

Reserve for Other Contingent Losses 3,485 1,182 32,830 11,135

Deferred Tax Liabilities for Land Revaluation (Notes 3 and 13) 10,855 11,778 102,260 110,956

Acceptances and Guarantees 88,707 109,379 835,675 1,030,419

Total Liabilities 6,353,476 6,314,372 59,853,754 59,485,369

Shareholders’ Equity (Notes 27 and 29)

Common Stock 85,113 85,113 801,818 801,818

Capital Surplus 58,574 58,574 551,804 551,804

Legal Reserve (Note 28) 52,381 49,940 493,462 470,466

Land Revaluation Reserve, Net of Tax (Notes 3 and 13) 15,378 16,535 144,870 155,770

Voluntary Reserves 151,469 100,647 1,426,933 948,158

Retained Earnings 14,048 63,646 132,341 599,585

Total Shareholders’ Equity 376,965 374,456 3,551,248 3,527,611

Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity ¥6,730,441 ¥6,688,828 $63,405,002 $63,012,981

See notes to non-consolidated financial statements.

Non-Consolidated Balance Sheets

NOITCESLAICNANIF
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Thousands of 
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars (Note 2)

For the Years Ended March 31, 2000 1999 2000 1999

Income
Interest Income:

Interest on Loans and Discounts ¥109,456 ¥119,531 $1,031,144 $1,126,057

Interest and Dividends on Securities 34,439 40,885 324,437 385,162

Other Interest Income 8,532 12,025 80,376 113,283

Fees and Commissions (Note 17) 14,479 14,068 136,401 132,529

Trading Revenue (Note 18) 111 862 1,045 8,120

Other Operating Income (Note 19) 3,000 22,690 28,261 213,754

Other Income (Note 20) 19,670 31,392 185,303 295,732

Total Income 189,691 241,461 1,787,008 2,274,715

Expenses
Interest Expenses:

Interest on Deposits 19,099 30,790 179,924 290,061

Interest on Borrowings and Rediscounts (Note 21) 6,528 7,698 61,497 72,520

Other Interest Expenses 16,134 16,743 151,992 157,729

Fees and Commissions (Note 22) 4,738 4,755 44,634 44,795

Trading Expenses (Note 23) 45 185 423 1,742

Other Operating Expenses (Note 24) 4,982 4,111 46,933 38,728

General and Administrative Expenses (Note 25) 77,268 79,122 727,913 745,379

Other Expenses (Note 26) 41,788 85,961 393,669 809,806

Total Expenses 170,587 229,370 1,607,037 2,160,810

Income before Income Taxes 19,103 12,090 179,962 113,895

Income Taxes:

Current 15,093 17,979 142,185 169,373

Deferred (Note 13) (7,033) (11,240) (66,256) (105,888)

Net Income 11,042 5,351 104,022 50,409

Retained Earnings 
Balance at Beginning of Year 63,646 (55,542) 599,585 (523,241)

Reversal of Voluntary Reserves 4,177 61,000 39,349 574,658

Reversal of Land Revaluation Reserve (Note 3) 1,214 — 11,436 —

Retirement of Treasury Stock (4,177) — (39,349) —

Cumulative Effect on Prior Years of Adopting 

Deferred Tax Accounting — 58,203 — 548,308

Appropriations:

Transfer to Legal Reserve (2,440) (942) (22,986) (8,874)

Cash Dividends (Note 29) (4,413) (4,422) (41,573) (41,658)

Transfer to Voluntary Reserves (55,000) — (518,134) —

Balance at End of Year (Note 30) ¥ 14,048 ¥  63,646 $ 132,341 $ 599,585

Yen U.S. Dollars (Note 2)

Per Share
Net Income ¥12.52 ¥6.04 $0.118 $0.057

Cash Dividends Applicable to the Year (Note 29) 5.00 5.00 0.047 0.047

See notes to non-consolidated financial statements.

Non-Consolidated Statements of Income and Retained Earnings 
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1. Basis of Presentation
The accompanying financial statements of The Joyo Bank, Ltd. (the
‘Bank’) do not include the accounts of its subsidiary companies.

The Bank’s accounting procedures and principles are conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan and with
the Commercial Code of Japan, the Banking Law of Japan, and the
Uniform Rules for Bank Accounting issued by the Japanese
Ministry of Finance. Accordingly, the accompanying non-
consolidated financial statements may differ in some material
respects from accounting principles and practices generally
accepted in countries and jurisdictions other than Japan.

In the preparation of these financial statements, certain
reclassifications and rearrangements have been made to the
original Japanese-language statements, and additional notes have
been included, in order to present them in a form that is familiar
to readers outside Japan.

2. Japanese Yen and U.S. Dollar Amounts
As permitted by the Securities and Exchange Law, amounts of less
than one million yen have been rounded off. As a result, the totals
shown in the accompanying non-consolidated financial statements
(both in yen and U.S. dollars) do not necessarily agree with the
sums of the individual amounts. Solely for the convenience of the
reader, the U.S. dollar amounts represent a translation of Japanese
yen amounts at ¥106.15 = US$1.00, the exchange rate prevailing on
March 31, 2000.

3. Land Revaluation Reserve
In accordance with the Law concerning the Revaluation of Land,
the Bank revalued land held for its operations on March 31, 1998.
The net unrealized gain is stated in shareholders’ equity net of the
applicable income taxes as “Land Revaluation Reserve, Net of Tax.”

4. Significant Accounting Policies
(a) Translation of foreign currencies
Foreign currency-denominated assets and liabilities are translated
into Japanese yen at the rates prevailing at the balance sheet date.

(b) Transactions for trading purposes
Transactions for “Trading purposes” (seeking to capture gains
arising from short-term changes in interest rates, currency
exchange rates or market prices of securities and other market-
related indices or from arbitrage between markets) are valued at
market or fair value, and included in “Trading Assets” and “Trading
Liabilities” on a trade-date basis. Profits and losses on trading
transactions are shown as “Trading Revenue” or “Trading
Expenses.”

Among the trading assets and liabilities, securities and
monetary claims are carried at market value as of the balance
sheet date. Derivatives including swaps, futures, and options are
valued assuming settlement on the balance sheet date.

(c) Securities
Securities are carried at cost determined by the moving average
method.

Securities invested in the form of certain trust funds and
included in “Money Held in Trust” are also carried at cost
determined by the moving average method.

(d) Depreciation of premises and equipment
Depreciation of buildings held by the Bank is computed by the
declining-balance method, based on the rates prescribed by the
Corporation Tax Law, except for buildings acquired on and after
April 1, 1998 on which depreciation is computed by the straight-
line method, based on the rates prescribed by the Corporation Tax
Law. Depreciation of equipment is computed by the declining-
balance method, based on the rates prescribed by the
Corporation Tax Law.

(e) Reserve for possible loan losses
The reserve for possible loan losses is provided as detailed below,
in accordance with the internal rules for providing reserves for
possible loan losses:

For claims to debtors who are legally bankrupt (due to bankruptcy,
composition, etc.) or substantially bankrupt, a reserve is provided
based on the amount of the claims net of the amounts expected
to be collected through the disposal of collateral or through the
execution of guarantees.

For claims to debtors who are not currently bankrupt, but are
likely to become bankrupt, a reserve is provided based on the
amount considered necessary based on an overall solvency
assessment, of the amount of claims net of the amounts expected
to be collected through the disposal of collateral or through the
execution of guarantees.

For other claims, a reserve is provided based on historical 
loan-loss experience. A reserve for loans to specific foreign
borrowers (including the reserve for losses on overseas
investments provided pursuant to Article 55-2 of the Special
Taxation Measures Law) is provided based on the amount of
losses expected due to the political and economic situation in
those countries.

All claims are assessed by the Business Section (branches and
related head office divisions) based on the internal rules for self-
assessment of asset quality. The Corporate Audit Department,
which is independent from the Business Section, subsequently
conducts audits of their assessments, and a reserve is provided
based on the audit results.

For collateralized or guaranteed claims to debtors who are
legally bankrupt or substantially bankrupt, the amount of the
claims exceeding the estimated value of the collateral or
guarantees which is deemed uncollectible was written off in the
aggregate amount of ¥70,974 million.

In conformity with a revision to the enforcement regulations of
the Banking Law, which became effective the year ended March
31, 2000, the reserve, formerly shown in liabilities, is presented as
a deduction from assets in the balance sheets. Due to this change,
both total assets and total liabilities fell by ¥95,778 million, from
the amounts which would have been recorded under the previous
method of accounting.

Notes to Non-Consolidated Financial Statements

NOITCESLAICNANIF
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(f) Reserve for retirement allowances and pension plan
Under the terms of the Bank’s retirement plan, substantially all
employees are entitled to a lump-sum payment at the time of
retirement. The amount of the retirement benefits is, in general,
based on the length of service, basic salary at the time of retirement 
and reason for retirement. The reserve for retirement allowances is
provided at 100% of the amount which would be required to be paid
if all eligible employees retired voluntarily at the balance sheet date.

In addition, the Bank has a contributory pension plan for
eligible employees. The balance of prior service cost under the
contributory pension plan was ¥1,274 million (including ¥845
million of valuation loss on the plan’s assets) as of March 31,
1999, which is being amortized by the straight-line method over
20 years by the accelerated method at 50% of the valuation loss.

(g) Reserve for possible losses on sales of loans
The reserve for possible losses on sales of loans is provided for 
future losses on sales of loans with real estate mortgages to the
Cooperative Credit Purchasing Co., Ltd. based on the estimated
fair value of each respective mortgage.

(h) Reserve for other contingent losses
The reserve for other contingent losses is provided based on the
estimated future losses on real estate mortgages associated with
the loans sold upon liquidation of the assets.

(i) Reserve for devaluation of investment securities
This reserve is provided to cover any future potential losses on
investments. Consideration is given to the financial situation of
the relevant companies in determining the amount to be
accounted for under the above reserve.

(j) Gains and losses resulting from revaluation of foreign
currency accounts

In accordance with the administrative notice entitled “Accounting
Procedures Related to Foreign Exchange Banks’ Transactions
in Foreign Currency-Denominated Assets and Currency Options
Contracts,” currency options transactions are valued at market
values prevailing at the balance sheet date (profits and losses
derived from forward foreign exchange contracts with more than
one year remaining before maturity are calculated based on the
market value of the contracts at the balance sheet date,
discounted at the long-term interest rate). Profits and losses
derived from the portion of spot exchange assets and liabilities
and forward contracts constituting funding-related swaps and
currency-related swaps made as an integral part of the funding
transactions are recognized on an accrual basis in accordance
with the above-mentioned administrative notice. Currency futures
transactions and currency options transactions are revalued at
market values at the balance sheet date in accordance with the
above-mentioned administrative notice.

(k) Income taxes
Income taxes comprise corporation, inhabitants’ and enterprise
taxes which, in the aggregate, resulted in a statutory tax rate of
approximately 41.6%.

Effective the year ended March 31, 1999, the Bank adopted
deferred tax accounting in conformity with the revised accounting
standards in Japan. As required, deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recorded based on the temporary differences between the
financial statements and the tax bases of the assets and liabilities.

(l) Net income per share
Computations of net income per share of common stock are
based on the weighted average number of shares outstanding
during each period.

(m) Leases
Finance leases other than those which transfer the ownership
of the leased property to the Bank are accounted for as operating
leases.

5. Trading Assets

Millions of Yen

March 31, 2000 1999

Trading Securities ¥ 1,151 ¥ 1,791
Trading-Related Financial Derivatives  558 1,271
Other Trading Assets 99,737 94,979

Total ¥101,446 ¥98,042

6. Securities

Millions of Yen

March 31, 2000 1999

Japanese Government Bonds ¥ 391,440 ¥ 225,482
Japanese Local Government Bonds 283,156 252,757
Corporate Bonds 117,409 104,369
Corporate Stocks 201,425 203,035
Other Securities 403,648 326,703
Securities Lent 2 4

Total ¥1,397,083 ¥1,112,353

7. Pledged assets
Securities, amounting to ¥16,208 million at book value, were pledged
as collateral for deposits of ¥59,185 million as of March 31, 2000.

In addition to the above, securities amounting to ¥65,247 million at
book value, were pledged as collateral in connection with exchange
settlements and futures transactions as of March 31, 2000.

8. Loans and Bills Discounted

Millions of Yen

March 31, 2000 1999

Bills Discounted ¥ 94,146 ¥ 118,278
Loans on Notes 889,933 946,517
Loans on Deeds 2,832,911 2,938,238
Overdrafts 628,951 753,181

Total ¥4,445,943 ¥4,756,216
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9. Non-Performing Loans
In accordance with disclosure requirements under the Rules for
Bank Accounting in Japan, which became effective April 1, 1995,
the balance of Loans and Bills Discounted at March 31, 2000 and
1999 included the following non-performing loans:

Millions of Yen

March 31, 2000 1999

(a) Loans in Bankruptcy and Dishonored Bills ¥ 19,597 ¥ 32,208
(b) Delinquent Loans 231,752 59,549
(c) Loans Past Due with Respect to Interest Payments  
for a Period of More than Three Months 2,707 16,683

(d) Restructured Loans 42,086 143,614

Effective the year ended March 31, 2000, the Bank began to
eliminate uncollectible amounts directly from loans (See Note 4(e)).
The effect of this change was to reduce “loans in bankruptcy” and
“delinquent loans” as of March 31, 2000 by ¥20,785 million and
¥49,969 million, respectively.

Accrued interest had been recognized in conformity with the tax
law.  Effective the year ended March 31, 2000, the Bank did not
recognize accrued interest on loans in bankruptcy, or substantially
or suspiciously in bankruptcy as a result of the Bank’s self-
assessment. The effect of this change was to reduce accrued interest
on “loans past due more than three months,” “restructured loans”
and “delinquent loans” for the year ended March 31, 2000 by ¥8,047
million, ¥127,951 million and ¥185,344 million, respectively.

10. Foreign Exchange

Millions of Yen

March 31, 2000 1999

Assets:
Due from Foreign Banks ¥ 413 ¥ 399
Foreign Exchange Bills Bought 577 776
Foreign Exchange Bills Receivable 3,370 2,695

Total ¥4,362 ¥3,871

Liabilities:
Due to Foreign Banks ¥ 6 ¥ 66
Foreign Exchange Bills Sold 99 137
Foreign Exchange Bills Payable 25 16

Total ¥ 131 ¥ 220

11. Other Assets

Millions of Yen

March 31, 2000 1999

Domestic Exchange Settlement A/C, Dr. ¥ 532 ¥ 503
Prepaid Expenses 538 679
Accrued Income 15,787 15,373
Other 27,907 24,581

Total ¥44,765 ¥41,138

12. Premises and Equipment

Millions of Yen

March 31, 2000 1999

Land, Buildings and Equipment ¥176,753 ¥176,391
Construction in Progress 150 3,194
Leasehold Guarantees and Deposits 7,921 8,046

Total 184,824 187,631
Less Accumulated Depreciation 85,766 84,484

Net Book Value ¥ 99,058 ¥103,147

13. Deferred Tax Assets

Millions of Yen

March 31, 2000 1999

Deferred Tax Assets:
Excess Reserve for Possible Loan Losses ¥58,122 ¥53,953
Excess Reserve for Retirement Allowances 5,190 4,915
Excess Depreciation 3,326 3,737
Transfer to Reserve for Possible Losses on 
Sales of Loans 2,420 1,856

Other 6,550 4,980

Total ¥75,611 ¥69,443

The major reasons for the significant differences between the
statutory tax rate and the effective tax rate including the corporate
income tax rate and other tax rates after the adoption of tax-effect
accounting are summarized as follows:

2000 1999
Statutory Tax Rate 41.6% 47.2%

Items Not Permanently Included in 
Income, such as Dividends Received -3.1% -6.4%

Adjustment for Term-End Deferred
Tax Assets Due to Tax Rate Revision 2.1% 12.5%

Others 1.6% 2.4%
Effective Tax Rate 42.2% 55.7%

On March 30, 2000 the “Ordinance regarding the imposition of
enterprise taxes through external standards taxation on banks in
Tokyo” was passed by the Tokyo Municipal Assembly and was
made law. With this legislation, the standards for applying
enterprise tax will be amended from the fiscal year beginning
April 1, 2000. For the year ended March 31, 2000, income was
subject to enterprise tax, but for the future years the enterprise
tax will be levied on gross profits. This means that the enterprise
tax will not be included in the tax calculations for deferred tax
accounting. Therefore the tax rate applying when calculating the
Bank’s Deferred Tax Assets and Deferred Tax Liabilities is 41.3%
for the year ended March 31, 2000, as against 41.6% in the
previous year. The effect of this change results in a decrease in
Deferred Tax Assets of ¥367 million, and an increase in Income Tax
Expenses—Deferred booked for the year ended March 31, 2000 of
¥367 million. There is also a decrease in Deferred Tax Liability for
Land Revaluation of ¥57 million, and an increase in the Land
Revaluation Account of ¥57 million at March 31, 2000. 

NOITCESLAICNANIF
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On June 9, 2000 the “Ordinance regarding the imposition of
enterprise taxes through external standards taxation on banks in
Osaka” was passed by the Osaka Municipal Assembly and was
made law. With this legislation, the standards for applying
enterprise tax will be amended from the fiscal year beginning
April 1, 2001. But the influence of the tax rate applying when
calculating the Bank’s Deferred Tax Assets and Deferred Tax
Liabilities will be not important. The effect of this change results
in a decrease in Deferred Tax Assets of ¥ 54 million, and Deferred
Tax Liability for Land Revaluation of ¥ 7 million, respectively. The
actual effect of the change in tax rates will be clarified when the
amount is calculated based on the differences prevalent on March
31, 2001. Therefore the amounts given above are subject to
revision. 

14. Deposits

Millions of Yen

March 31, 2000 1999

Current Deposits ¥ 111,462 ¥ 128,319
Ordinary Deposits 1,720,190 1,576,355
Savings Deposits 102,362 117,514
Deposits at Notice 91,894 66,609
Time Deposits 3,721,703 3,777,028
Installment Savings 2,977 12,090
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 14,299 7,233
Other 154,081 173,796

Total ¥5,918,971 ¥5,858,946

15. Trading Liabilities

Millions of Yen

March 31, 2000 1999

Trading-Related Financial Derivatives ¥745 ¥1,446

16. Other Liabilities

Millions of Yen

March 31, 2000 1999

Domestic Exchange Settlement A/C, Cr.  ¥ 1,278 ¥ 3,994
Accrued Taxes 6,882 16,856
Accrued Expenses 21,316 24,601
Unearned Income 4,985 5,703
Employees’ Deposits 1,776 10,717
Deposits on Bonds Loaned 31,421 34,836
Other 42,298 14,816

Total ¥109,959 ¥111,528

17. Fees and Commissions (Income)

Millions of Yen

March 31, 2000 1999

Exchange Settlement ¥ 7,764 ¥ 7,815
Other Fees and Commissions 6,715 6,253

Total ¥14,479 ¥14,068

18. Trading Revenue

Millions of Yen

March 31, 2000 1999

Revenue from Trading Securities ¥ 55 ¥ 27
Other Trading Revenue 55 835

Total ¥111 ¥862

19. Other Operating Income

Millions of Yen

March 31, 2000 1999

Gains on Foreign Exchange Transactions ¥ 644 ¥ 440
Gains on Sales of Bonds 2,304 22,181
Other 51 68

Total ¥3,000 ¥22,690

20. Other Income

Millions of Yen

March 31, 2000 1999

Gains on Sales of Stocks and Other Securities ¥15,995 ¥25,738
Gains on Money Held in Trust 599 674
Other Current Revenues 2,096 1,436
Other 979 3,544

Total ¥19,670 ¥31,392

21. Interest on Borrowings and Rediscounts

Millions of Yen

March 31, 2000 1999

Call Money ¥4,796 ¥5,794
Bills Sold 5 34
Borrowings 1,726 1,870

Total ¥6,528 ¥7,698

22. Fees and Commissions (Expenses)

Millions of Yen

March 31, 2000 1999

Exchange Settlement ¥1,518 ¥1,549
Other Fees and Commissions 3,219 3,205

Total ¥4,738 ¥4,755

23. Trading Expenses

Millions of Yen

March 31, 2000 1999

Expenses on Trading-Related Financial 
Derivatives Transactions ¥45 ¥185
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27. Shareholders’ Equity
As of June 29, 2000, 2,190,632 thousand shares of common stock of
the Bank, with a par value of ¥50 per share, were authorized and
875,348 thousand shares were issued. Under the Commercial Code
of Japan, at least 50% of the issue price of new shares, with a mini-
mum of the par value thereof, is required to be designated as stated
capital. The portion which is to be credited to stated capital is deter-
mined by resolution of the Board of Directors. Accordingly, the
aggregate amount of the par value of the issued shares does not
equal the stated capital of the Bank.

28. Legal Reserve
Under the Banking Law, an amount equal to at least 20% of cash
dividends paid and bonuses to directors and statutory auditors
must be appropriated to the legal reserve from retained earnings
until such reserve equals 100% of common stock. This reserve is
not available for dividends but may be used to reduce 
a deficit or may be transferred to common stock.

29. Dividends and Interim Dividends
The Bank pays dividends twice a year. Annual dividends are 
paid to shareholders of record as of March 31 and are reflected 
in the non-consolidated statements of income and retained
earnings when duly approved and paid. In addition, the Bank pays
interim dividends to shareholders of record as of September 30.

30. Subsequent Events
(1) The Board of Directors of the Bank, at a meeting  held on April
28, 2000, approved the first and the second issues of unsecured
bonds on May 24, 2000 in amounts of ¥10,000 million and ¥5,000
million, respectively.
(2) On May 31, 2000 Daihyaku Mutual Life Insurance Company
(“Daihyaku”) received an order for the partial suspension of business
from the Financial Supervisory Agency under the Insurance Business
Law. The Bank had loans to Daihyaku totaling ¥11,000 million as of
May 31, 2000, and the collectibility is uncertain as of the date of this
report.
(3) Appropriation of Retained Earnings
The following appropriations of retained earnings were approved
at a general shareholders’ meeting held on June 29, 2000:

Millions of Yen

Retained Earnings at March 31, 2000 ¥14,048
Reversal of Voluntary Reserves 822
Appropriations:

Transfer to Legal Reserve 2,000
Cash Dividends 2,188
Bonuses to Directors and Corporate Auditors 30
Transfer to Voluntary Reserves 5,000

Retained Earnings Carried Forward ¥ 5,653

24. Other Operating Expenses

Millions of Yen

March 31, 2000 1999

Losses on Sales of Bonds ¥2,908 ¥2,810
Losses on Redemption and Write-offs of Bonds 2,074 1,300

Total ¥4,982 ¥4,111

25. General and Administrative Expenses

Millions of Yen

March 31, 2000 1999

Salaries and Allowances ¥40,383 ¥41,659
Retirement Benefits 514 1,010
Welfare Expenses 309 411
Depreciation 3,208 3,971
Rent and Lease Expenses 4,847 4,790
Taxes and Public Impositions 3,687 3,677
Other 24,320 23,604

Total ¥77,268 ¥79,122

Payments related to finance leases other than those which transfer
the ownership of the leased property to the Bank amounted to
¥1,406 million and ¥1,453 million and were charged to income for
the years ended March 31, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

Future lease payments under such finance and operating leases
at March 31, 2000 are summarized as follows:

Millions of Yen

March 31, 2000 Finance Leases Operating Leases

Due Within One Year ¥1,259 ¥ 88
Due After One Year 2,474 982

Total ¥3,734 ¥1,071

26. Other Expenses

Millions of Yen

March 31, 2000 1999

Provision for Possible Loan Losses ¥20,885 ¥74,043
Provision for Losses on 
Sales of Loans and Other 5,336 2,287

Write-offs of Claims 10,907 96
Losses on Devaluation of Stocks and 
Other Securities 1,490 3,224

Losses on Sales of Stocks 498 1,923
Losses on Disposal of Premises
and Equipment 818 193

Other 1,851 4,192

Total ¥41,788 ¥85,961

For the years ended March 31, 2000 and 1999, “other expenses—
other” included losses on sales of loans with real estate
mortgages to the Cooperative Credit Purchasing Co., Ltd. and
other institutions of ¥1,670 million and ¥4,070 million,
respectively.

NOITCESLAICNANIF
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Corporate Planning Division

Corporate Administration Division

Publicity Office

Tokyo Sub-Headquarters

Staff Counseling Office

Affiliated Company Management Office

Corporate Audit Division

Legal Office

Audit Office

Executive Secretariat

New York Branch

London Branch

Corporate Management Section

Business Planning Division

Business Development Office

Retail Banking Division

Customer Counseling Office

Call Center
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Computer System Division

Data Processing Center

Area Data Processing Center

Loan Operation Centers

Consumer Finance Centers

Living and Business Consulting Center

Business Section

Retail Banking Business Group

Corporate Banking Business Division

Hokuto District Business Division

Area Corporate Business Division

Markets Planning Office

International Business Office

International Operations Office

Shanghai Representative Office

Corporate Banking Business Group

Government and Municipal Business Division

Public Business Group

Credit Examination Division

Credit Supervision Division

Credit Risk Management Group

Treasury and Securities Division

Markets and Business Administration Division

Market Business Group

General Meeting of 
Shareholders

Board of Directors

Strategic Council

Corporate Auditors Meeting

Corporate Auditors

Head Office
Tokyo Business Div.
182 Branches and Sub-Branches
9 Agencies

THE JOYO BANK, LTD.

Organization

As of July 3, 2000
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Board of Directors and Corporate Auditors

� Head Office

5-5, Minami-machi 2-chome, Mito,
Ibaraki 310-0021, Japan
Phone: 029-231-2151

� Market Business Group

Managing Director
Noboru Ehashi

� Markets and Business
Administration Division

7-2, Yaesu 2-chome, Chuo-ku,
Tokyo 104-0028, Japan
Phone: 03-3273-1741
Telefax: 03-3242-3726
General Manager
Yukihiko Watanabe
Deputy General Manager
Noriaki Suzuki
Councilor
Kuniharu Harashima

• Operations Group (Tokyo)

Senior Manager
Osato Aizawa

• Operations Group (Mito)

Senior Manager
Keno Ochiai

� Markets Planning office
7-2, Yaesu 2-chome, Chuo-ku,
Tokyo 104-0028, Japan
Phone: 03-3273-2631
Telefax: 03-3274-1529
General Manager
Hirohiko Sato

� International Business Office
5-5, Minami-machi 2-chome, Mito,
Ibaraki 310-0045, Japan
Phone: 029-300-2730
Telefax: 029-231-2193
General Manager
Naoyuki Ishii

� International Operations Office
3-3, Shinhara 1-chome, Mito,
Ibaraki 310-0045, Japan
Phone: 029-255-6671
Telefax: 029-255-6522
Telex: J23278 JOYOBANK

3632105 JOYOBK
Swift: JOYOJPJT
General Manager
Hisao Terayama

� Treasury and Securities Division

7-2, Yaesu 2-chome, Chuo-ku, 
Tokyo 104-0028, Japan
Phone: 03-3273-5245
Telefax: 03-3273-2480
General Manager
Akira Uchida
Joint General Manager
Kaoru Miyata
Deputy General Manager
Shigeki Morita

• Investment Group

Senior Manager
Akira Iwato

• Business Promotion Group

Manager
Masahide Takauchi

� New York Branch
150 East 52nd Street, 6th Floor, 
New York, N.Y. 10022, U.S.A.
Phone: 1-212-752-2500
Telex: 4976129 JOYONY
Telefax: 1-212-752-6900
General Manager
Hiroaki Yokochi
Deputy General Manager
Hideto Kashimura
Managers
Sentaro Iimura
Norihisa Nakamura
Yasuhiro Katada

� London Branch
Austin Friars House, 2-6 Austin Friars,
London EC2N 2HD, U.K.
Phone: 44-20-7628-5678
Telex: 8956812 JOYOLD
Telefax: 44-20-7638-0888
General Manager
Sotaro Yamada
Deputy General Manager
Makoto Honya
Managers
Takeaki Sato
Yoichi Kurosawa
Noboru Araki
Toshio Nakane
Jeffrey Cheah

� Shanghai Representative Office
Room 1901, Shanghai International Trade
Centre, 2201 Yan An Road (West),
Shanghai 200335 P.R. of China
Phone: 86-21-6209-0258
Telefax: 86-21-6209-0508
Chief Representative
Michihiro Ono
Deputy Chief Representative
Michio Kato

As of July 24, 2000

Market Business Group

Chairman
Toranosuke Nishino

President
Isao Shibuya

Senior Managing Directors
Shigeru Otaka
Shinichi Yamada

Standing Corporate Auditors
Hideo Kobayashi
Kozo Suzuki

Corporate Auditors
Suguru Kurosawa
Tadao Kanazawa
Kazumitsu Tsurumi

As of March 31, 2000

Managing Directors
Takashi Iwakami
Yuto Kawahara
Noboru Ehashi
Atsushi Yanagawa
Kunio Onizawa

Director
Itaru Ishikawa

Director and Executive Officer
Makoto Tateno
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Overseas:
New York Branch
London Branch
Shanghai Representative Office

As of July 1, 2000

Miyagi Pref. (1 Branch)

Fukushima Pref. (11 Branches, 1 Agency)

Mito (Head Office, International Business Office,
International Operations Office)

Ibaraki Pref. (Head Offices, 123 Branches, 
29 Sub-Branches, 8 Agencies)

Tochigi Pref. (6 Branches)

Chiba Pref. (5 Branches)

Saitama Pref. (2 Branches)

Tokyo (Tokyo Business Div., 4 Branches)

Osaka Pref. (1 Branch)

Markets and Business Administration Div.
Treasury and Securities Div.

Service Network

� The Joyo Lease Co., Ltd.

4-12, Minami-machi 3-chome, Mito, Ibaraki
Established 1974, Capital Stock: ¥100 million
Joyo’s Equity Share: 5%
This company rapidly and flexibly accommo-
dates diversifying customer needs by supply-
ing a wide range of financial services,
centering on leasing of machinery and equip-
ment for any business field.

� The Joyo Credit Guarantee Co., Ltd.

4-12, Minami-machi 3-chome, Mito, Ibaraki
Established 1978, Capital Stock: ¥30 million
Joyo’s Equity Share: 5%
This company is mainly in charge of guarantee
business for customers requesting loans from
the Bank such as housing loans. The separate
and dedicated operations for loan guarantees
allow customers to use the service through 
a simple and quick procedure.

� The Joyo Credit Co., Ltd.

4-12, Minami-machi 3-chome, Mito, Ibaraki
Established 1982, Capital Stock: ¥100 million
Joyo’s Equity Share: 5%
This credit company was founded as
a franchise of the DC Card system. The “DC
Master Card” and the “DC VISA Card” meet
diversified customers’ needs and serve to
establish the reputation of DC as an interna-
tional brand.

� The Joyo Business Service Co., Ltd.

8-1, Sasano-machi 1-chome, Hitachinaka, Ibaraki
Established 1984, Capital Stock: ¥100 million
Joyo’s Equity Share: 100%
This company is an agent mainly in charge of
administrative work for Joyo Bank such as
maintenance of CDs and ATMs. It contributes
to improving convenience for customers, as
well as improving the Bank’s operations by
establishing an efficient operation processing
support system.

� The Joyo Staff Service Co., Ltd.

4-12, Minami-machi 3-chome, Mito, Ibaraki
Established 1991, Capital Stock: ¥30 million
Joyo’s Equity Share: 100%
This company is dedicated to human resource
development and personnel dispatch services.
It contributes to upgrading the efficiency and
services of the Bank by securing and quickly
supplying good human resources and provid-
ing profession training.

� The Joyo Financial Service Co., Ltd.

4-12, Minami-machi 3-chome, Mito, Ibaraki
Established 1991, Capital Stock: ¥100 million
Joyo’s Equity Share: 5%
This company is actively engaged in meeting
diversified customer demands, including the
need for products such as mortgage-backed
securities, and offers consulting services for
corporations going public.

� The Joyo Equipment Management 
Co., Ltd.

5-5, Minami-machi 2-chome, Mito, Ibaraki
Established 1999, Capital Stock: ¥100 million
Joyo’s Equity Share: 100%
This company is engaged in maintenance
and management of operational properties
and equipments of the Bank.

� The Joyo Cash Service Co., Ltd.

3-1, Jonan 1-chome, Mito, Ibaraki
Established 1999, Capital Stock: 50 million
Joyo’s Equity Share: 100%
This company is engaged in management and
maintenance of ATMs and CDs.

As of March 31, 2000

Affiliated Companies
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Date of Establishment July 30, 1935

Head Office 5-5, Minami-machi 2-chome, Mito, Ibaraki 310-0021, Japan
Phone: 029-231-2151
Telefax: 029-231-2193
URL: http://www.joyobank.co.jp/

http://www.joyobank.co.jp/joyobank/eng/ (English Page)

Markets and Business 7-2, Yaesu 2-chome, Chuo-ku, Tokyo 104-0028, Japan
Administration Division Phone: 03-3273-1741

Telefax: 03-3242-3726
Telex: J23278 “JOYOBANK”, 3632105 “JOYOBK”
Swift: JOYOJPJT

Domestic Network Head Office, Tokyo Business Div., and 182 Branches 
(including 29 Sub-Branches) and 9 Agencies

Overseas Network 2 Branches (New York, London)
1 Representative Office (Shanghai)

Number of Employees 4,330

Stock Exchange Listing Tokyo Stock Exchange

Paid-in Capital ¥85,113 million

Number of Shares of Common Stock Authorized 2,190,632 thousand
Issued and Outstanding 875,348 thousand

Number of Shareholders 38,278

Principal Shareholders The 10 largest shareholders of the Bank and their respective
shareholdings at March 31, 2000 were as follows:

Number of Shares Percentage of Total
Held Shares Outstanding

(Thousands) (%)

The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi, Ltd. ........................................................... 42,295 4.83 %

The Nippon Fire and Marine Insurance Company, Limited .................... 40,973 4.68

The Sumitomo Bank, Limited .................................................................... 30,429 3.47

Daihyaku Mutual Life Insurance Company ............................................... 30,083 3.43

The Sumitomo Trust and Banking Company, Limited ............................. 17,626 2.01

Sumitomo Life Insurance Company .......................................................... 16,448 1.87

The Industrial Bank of Japan, Limited ....................................................... 16,358 1.86

The Dai-ichi Mutual Life Insurance Company ............................................ 15,050 1.71

Nippon Life Insurance Company ............................................................... 14,449 1.65

Meiji Life Insurance Company ...................................................................... 13,000 1.48

Total ...................................................................................................... 236,714 27.04 %

As of March 31, 2000

Corporate Data

For further information,
please write to:

Markets and Business
Administration Division,
The Joyo Bank, Ltd.
7-2, Yaesu 2-chome,
Chuo-ku, Tokyo 
104-0028, Japan

Production: D & Join, Inc.
Printed in Japan
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